Botetourt County
Planning Commission Agenda
57 S. Center Drive, Daleville, Virginia
February 14, 2022, 6:00 PM
Anyone interested in addressing the Planning Commission should complete a “Request to Speak” form and give it to
Staff before the meeting begins. Forms are located with the agendas and at Planning Staff’s table. When your name is
called, please go to the podium. Please state your name and address before making your comments. All comments
must be directed to the Planning Commission members. Comments made to or from the audience during testimony or
commission deliberation are not permitted. Recognized speakers and the audience must be courteous at all times. A
time limit of three minutes per speaker (unless otherwise provided for by a majority of the Planning Commission members
present) will be observed. All cell phones must be set on the mute or silence mode.

1.

Administrative Business
A. The Planning Commission will meet in the Kroger parking lot for the field review on Thursday,

March 10, 2022 at 3:15 PM.
B. Review and approval of the November 8, 2021 and December 13, 2021 Planning Commission

minutes.
2.

Public Hearings
A. Amsterdam District: Melinda Ann Simpson requests a Special Exception Permit, with

possible conditions, in accordance with Sec. 25-583 Special Exceptions and Sec. 25-73. – Uses
Permissible by Special Exception to permit a private kennel for up to 20 dogs in the
Agricultural (A-1) Use District on a 3.47-acre lot at 515 Etzler Road (State Route 672),
Troutville, VA, and identified on the Real Property Identification Maps of Botetourt County
as Section 87, Parcel 141A.
B. Amsterdam District: Joel F. & Rietta L. Plante request a rezoning of a 4.26-acre parcel, with

possible proffered conditions, from the Agricultural Rural Residential (AR) Use District to the
Agriculture (A-1) Use District for agricultural uses, and a Homestay, Short-Term Rental, in
accordance with Sec. 25-581.- Zoning map amendment—Owner initiated. and Article II, Division
1. – Agricultural (A-1) Sec 25-72 (20).- PermittedUses of the Botetourt County Code. Located at
50 Ottaway Road, Troutville, this parcel is identified on the Real Property Identification Maps
of Botetourt County as Section 101B(4), Parcel 24.
C. The Botetourt County Board of Supervisors have authorized the consideration of proposed

text amendments to Chapter 25 of the Botetourt County Zoning Ordinance, as follows:
Article VI. – Definitions, Section 25-601. Definitions, to amend the existing definition of
Convenience store and add a definition for the proposed use: Convenience store, highway;
Article II. – District Regulations Generally, Division 11. Business District B-2, Section 25-243.
Uses permissible by special exception, to add the proposed use Convenience store,
highway that would be permitted through granting only by special exception permit and
subject to supplemental regulations; Article IV. – Supplemental Regulations, Division 1. –
Use Regulations, to add standards under which the proposed use Convenience store,
highway use would be permitted; and Article IV. – Supplemental Regulations, Division 3. –
Parking, Section 25-473. – Required off-street parking and loading spaces, to amend the
parking requirement for the use of Convenience store and to add a parking requirement
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for the proposed use Convenience store, highway. A draft of the proposed text
amendments is available online or by contacting the Planning & Zoning Office.
D. Buchanan Magisterial District: Buttons Bluff LLC in accordance with Section 25-581.4.

Comprehensive Plan Amendment and Review of the Botetourt County Zoning Ordinance,
request to remove an approximate 0.75+/- mile portion of Buttons Bluff (State Route 690)
from Map 12 of the Botetourt County Transportation Map for the purpose of seeking to
abandon the road between the railroad and the dead end of the road as maintained by
VDOT, upon a 259.87-acre parcel in Eagle Rock, VA.
3.

Other Business
A. Nomination and election of Chair and Vice-chair.
B. Acceptance of 2022 Planning Commission Bylaws.
C. Comprehensive Plan work session.

4.

Adjournment
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DRAFT
Mr. Sam Foster called the November 8, 2021 meeting of the Botetourt County Planning Commission to
order at 6:00 PM, in the auditorium of the Botetourt County Administration Center in Daleville, Virginia.
PRESENT:

ABSENT:

Mr. Sam Foster, Chairman
Mr. Steven L. Kidd, Member
Mr. Brandon Nicely, Member
Mr. William Thurman, Member
Mr. Billy Martin, Sr., Ex-Officio Member
Mr. Mike Lockaby, County Attorney
Mrs. Nicole Pendleton, Director of Community Development
Mr. Drew Pearson, Zoning Administrator
Mr. Jon McCoy, Long-Range Planner
Mr. Nick Baker, Code Enforcement Officer
Mrs. Laura Goad, Administrative Assistant
Mr. Hiawatha Nicely, Jr., Vice-Chairman

After Mr. Foster opened the meeting and welcomed those in attendance, he introduced Staff and Planning
Commission members, and then read the procedures for the public hearing, noting that anyone wishing
to speak should complete a “Request to Speak” form and give it to a Staff member.
Mr. Foster stated the Board of Supervisors would hear this request on November 23, 2021 at 6:00 PM at
the Botetourt County Administration Center.
Mr. Foster announced that the Planning Commission would meet in the Kroger parking lot for the next
field review at 3:15 PM on Thursday, December 2, 2021.
Mr. Kidd motioned to approve the October 12, 2021 Planning Commission minutes as written.
Mr. B. Nicely seconded the motion, which was approved 4:0:0:1 with the following recorded vote:
YES:
NO:
ABSTAIN:
ABSENT:

Mr. B. Nicely, Mr. Kidd, Mr. Foster, Mr. Thurman
None
None
Mr. H. Nicely

Public Hearings
Amsterdam District: Charles J. and Grace L. Hicks request the rezoning of an 11.87-acre parcel, with
possible proffered conditions, from the Residential(R-1) Use District to the Agriculture (A-1) Use District
for agricultural uses, in accordance with Sec. 25-581.- Zoning map amendment—Owner initiated. and
Article II, Division 1. – Agricultural (A-1) Sec 25-72 - Permitted Uses of the Botetourt County Code. The
parcel is located at 895 Old Sessler Mill Road (State Route 788), Troutville VA and is identified on the
Real Property Identification Maps of Botetourt County as Section 72D(1), Parcel 22&23.
Mr. Pearson displayed the zoning and aerial maps on PowerPoint, in addition to the concept plan and staff
photos. He stated the subject property was highlighted in red, as he noted the yellow Residential, R-1 Use
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District properties. Mr. Pearson said these parcels were rezoned in 1982 in order to restrict properties
from having mobile homes. He also said that two other requests were approved in recent years with
proffered conditions so they could have agricultural uses that would not include mobile homes.
Mr. Pearson stated that this applicant also signed a proffered condition to exclude mobile homes, as he
pointed out nearby Agricultural, A-1 properties. He said the applicant proposed a pick-your-own
strawberry farm. Displaying photos, Mr. Pearson showed their home, driveway, and the clearing with the
field for the agriculture operation. He then displayed the first picture with the barn, the driveway leading
to the Hicks’ property and the area to use for the proposed farm, plus the fenced properties across the
road with agricultural uses. Mr. Pearson stated the applicants were present, and that Staff had not
received any public comments.
Mr. Foster noted the Planning Commission had received the signed proffer. He asked about the HUD
terminology.
Mr. Pearson explained that the HUD standards meant the typical single and doublewide homes.
Mr. Foster opened the public hearing.
Mr. and Mrs. Hicks offered no additional statements.
There being no one else to speak, Mr. Foster closed the public hearing.
Mr. B. Nicely noted that the proffer would be fine.
Mr. Kidd motioned to forward the request for the rezoning with a recommendation of conditional
approval with the following proffered condition as submitted by the applicant, the basis that the
requirements of Section 25-581 of the Zoning Ordinance has been satisfied with the following proffered
condition:
1. Mobile (Manufactured) Homes built to HUD standards shall be prohibited.
Mr. B. Nicely seconded, which was approved 4:0:0:1, with the following recorded vote:
YES:
NO:
ABSTAIN:
ABSENT:

Mr. B. Nicely, Mr. Kidd, Mr. Foster, Mr. Thurman
None
None
Mr. H. Nicely

The Botetourt County Board of Supervisors propose text amendments to Chapter 25, Zoning, Article II.
District Regulations Generally, Division 13. – Shopping Center District (SC), Section 25-286.(b) – Building
Requirements, to increase the maximum height of buildings and structures in this district from thirtyfive (35) feet to forty-five (45) feet by right, and to Section 25-283. – Uses by Special Exception, add the
text “(6) maximum height up to sixty (60) feet”. This is in accordance with Section 25-581.2 Zoning
Ordinance text amendment—Owner initiated, where the Board authorized this text amendment for
consideration by the Planning Commission.
Mr. Pearson displayed the PowerPoint slide that displayed the text in red that would change. He pointed
out 25-283 (6), Shopping Center Special Exceptions, increasing the maximum building height up to sixty
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(60) feet, and 25-286(b) Building Requirements increasing the by-right height from thirty-five (35) feet to
forty-five (45) feet, and sixty feet by special exception. He noted this language is consistent with other use
districts in the ordinance, and the Board authorized these amendments for consideration by the Planning
Commission.
Mr. Pearson noted that the Section 25-283(6) special exception part of the ordinance change would allow
an applicant to go beyond what is allowed by-right. Next, he noted that Section 25-286, Building
requirements, Mr. Pearson noted the requested change from 35 feet to 45 feet, and to 60 feet for a special
exception permit in only the Shopping Center Use District. Mr. Pearson the presented a chart showing the
allowed building heights by each use district, from the least restrictive to most restrictive. He reviewed
the PUD, RAM, Industrial, TND, R-4 use districts, some allowances for schools and apartments, the R-1,
R-2, R-3, A-1, FC, and RR use districts. Mr. Pearson then talked about the Business, B-3 use districts, plus
the PIP, B-1, B-2 SC & POP use districts. He noted that while there were few occassions to do 60-feet by
right, this was generally done in the SC use district, such as in the Gateway Corridor, Botetourt Commons,
Mountain View Plaza areas zoned SC, as well as the Food Lion on Laymantown, the Blue Ridge Mall in
Blue Ridge. Mr. Pearson commented that the county did not have a lot of SC zoning, that it was a carefully
planned use district, and it made sense to have buildings a little higher than 35 feet.
Mr. B. Nicely wanted to know if there was any response from Fire and EMS.
Mr. Pearson responded that Fire and EMS had no particular concerns with additional height, and they
noted no issue with coverage, which would be handled at site plan stage.
Mr. Foster opened the public hearing.
There being no one else to speak, Mr. Foster closed the public hearing.
Mr. Thurman thanked Mr. Pearson for the chart.
Mr. Kidd motioned to forward the text amendments for Section 25-286.(b) – Building Requirements, to
increase the maximum height of buildings and structures in this district from thirty-five (35) feet to fortyfive (45) feet by right, and to Section 25-283. – Uses by Special Exception, add the text “(6) maximum
height up to sixty (60) feet”. to the Board of Supervisors with a recommendation of approval.
This recommendation is made on the basis that the requirements of Section 25-581.1 of the Zoning
Ordinance have been satisfied, and that the proposal would serve the public necessity, convenience,
general welfare, and is good zoning practice.
Mr. B. Nicely seconded, which was approved 4:0:0:1, with the following recorded vote:
YES:
NO:
ABSTAIN:
ABSENT:

Mr. B. Nicely, Mr. Kidd, Mr. Foster, Mr. Thurman
None
None
Mr. H. Nicely

Amsterdam District: DMH Partners VA LLC with Jatin Patel (contractual purchaser) request a Special
Exception Permit, with possible conditions, in the Shopping Center (SC) Use District to permit a building
height that exceeds the by-right height of thirty-five (35) feet, in accordance with Sec. 25-583 Special
Exceptions and Sec. 25-283. – Uses Permissible by Special Exception, (6) maximum height up to sixty (60)
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feet, pending amendments to the Zoning Ordinance. The parcel is located at the southeast corner of
Market Ridge Lane (State Route 1192) and Roanoke Road (US Route 220), Daleville, VA and is identified
on the Real Property Identification Maps of Botetourt County as Section 101, Parcel 109B.
Mr. Pearson stated the applicant emailed a request for a 30-day continuance, explaining that because the
request had been advertised, the Planning Commission must vote on whether or not to grant the
continuance.
Mr. B. Nicely motioned to grant a continuance until December 13, 2021, 6:00 PM, which was seconded
by Mr. Kidd. The motion passed 4:0:0:1 with the following recorded vote:
YES:
NO:
ABSTAIN:
ABSENT:

Mr. B. Nicely, Mr. Kidd, Mr. Foster, Mr. Thurman
None
None
Mr. H. Nicely

NOTE: The following public hearing has been transcribed as required for Telecommunication Tower
applications. Words that are unclear are indicated with “…”.
Buchanan Magisterial District: Deborah G. and Leon O. Turner, Jr. (Cellco Partnership d/b/a Verizon
Wireless., lessees) request a Commission Permit in accordance with §15.2-2232 of the Code of Virginia,
in addition to a Special Exception Permit, with possible conditions, to construct and maintain a nonilluminated 199-foot telecommunications facility within a 10,000 square foot ground lease area in the
Agricultural (A1) Use District in accordance with 25-583, Special Exceptions and Sec. 25-73. - Uses
Permissible by Special Exception, (55) Telecommunications tower, free-standing, subject to standards
of Sec. 25-441.- Telecommunications facilities of the Botetourt County Code, The tower site is proposed
to be accessed from Goad Road (State Rt 724) over and across the subject property by a 20-foot access
and utility easement. The 55.681-acre parcel is located adjacent to 304 and 400 Goad Road,
approximately 0.5 miles northeast of its intersection with Wheatland Road (Route 639) and is identified
on the Real Property Identification Maps of Botetourt County as Section 62, Parcel 155C.
Mrs. Pendleton: Good evening Chairman, Members of the Commission, that [microphone] was not on. Is
that better?
Mr. Kidd: Now it is.
Mrs. Pendleton: This request is in the Buchanan Magisterial District: Deborah G. and Leon O. Turner, Jr.
(Cellco Partnership d/b/a Verizon Wireless., lessees) request a Commission Permit in accordance with
§15.2-2232 of the Code of Virginia, in addition to a Special Exception Permit, with possible conditions, to
construct and maintain a non-illuminated 199-foot telecommunications facility within a 10,000 square
foot ground lease area in the Agricultural (A1) Use District in accordance with 25-583, Special Exceptions
and Sec. 25-73. - Uses Permissible by Special Exception, (55) Telecommunications tower, free-standing,
subject to standards of Sec. 25-441.- Telecommunications facilities of the Botetourt County Code. The
tower site is proposed to be accessed from Goad Road (State Rt 724) over and across the subject property
by a 20-foot access and utility easement. This is a 55.681-acre parcel is located adjacent to 304 and 400
Goad Road, approximately half a mile northeast of the intersection with Wheatland Road and identified
on the Real Property Identification Maps of Botetourt County as Section 62, Parcel 155C. Verizon has
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submitted this application to construct a 195-foot steel monopole tower, capable of supporting multiple
carriers. In addition to Verizon, the tower will be engineered and constructed to support co-location of
antennas and supporting equipment of at least four additional ... providers. The proposed monopole will
be located approximately 425 feet to the northeast of the gated entrance to the property and 596 feet
from the closest off-site residential structure. The proposed tower is proposed to be installed with an 80
x 80 foot fenced in compound within a 10,000 square foot leased area and again accessed by gravel drive.
The applicant states that the proposed facility will provide expanded in-building coverage and additional
capacity for residents, small businesses, and other nearby establishments in this area near the central
point between Fincastle and Springwood. The applicant further states that this site will also provide
improvements for services at the street level and in cars for those traveling along Wheatland Road,
Springwood Road, Beaver Dam Road and other nearby local roads. Verizon determined there are no
existing structures suitable for the placement of their equipment with in the one-mile radius of their
search area ring that is identified by Verizon and targeting this particular area. There was a balloon test
conducted on July 22, 2021 and the photographs from the balloon test as well as photosimulations are
included in the application package. The applicant has prepared a presentation with those balloon tests
and images, so i’ll let them display those, but just very quickly, [Powerpoint display] the the imagery above
will show, this is Wheatland Road, and over here, this is the entrance to, this is the particular property
here, this is a property line boundary, this is the approximate location of the tower, and you will see here
some high transmission power lines that bisect this property. And just one other location, this is looking
from the north to the south, and this is the most recent tower site that I believe that we approved, which
is Spreading Springs, I don’t see anymore here, and the Fincastle area would be in this direction. The
ordinance’s requirements for this particular application are regulated by different components of the
zoning ordinance with additional supplemental regulations, and if it were to be approved, a site plan and
a building permit would be required prior to the onset of construction. The Comprehensive Plan in this
area is identified as Agricultural, which includes land areas in the rural portions of the county, where
agriculture and forestal uses are the dominant land use. Large lot, single family developments may now
exist, and future development of these properties at densities higher than allowed at the current ag zoning
are not encouraged. In regards to determining if wireless telecommunications towers are in accordance
with the Comprehensive Plan, the Planning Commission should consider at least the following: If the
facility serves or fails to enhance, preserve, or protect areas of natural and rural significance; If the facility
minimizes the visibility of wireless communication structures; If the facility is located within a designated
Urban Development Area; If the facility is protective of a critical viewshed for its environmental, aesthetic,
agricultural, and/or recreational value; If the facility maintains or promotes unique aspects and resources
of the rural community; and if the facility maintains a balance between development and preservation.
In terms of public comment, we did receive one inquiry from an adjacent property owner last week. The
property owner mentioned that he had a conservation easement on his property and was concerned
about the impacts of the tower on that conservation easement. And he also mentioned that there is a
cemetery on the project site itself. We passed the comments along to the applicant. They may be
prepared to address those this evening. In addition, right before the meeting or shortly before the
meeting, we did receive comments from Mrs. Teresa Simmons, and you’ll see you have comments at your
desk regarding her objection to the tower. I do believe she may be prepared to speak. In terms of
suggested conditions, there are seven conditions proposed, and you’ll note in the presentation, the
amendments to conditions two and five in your background report, which has changed the wording just
a bit, in terms of when the structural analysis is required. Again, always suggest the condition of
substantial conformance, with the location shown on the concept plan, the feed lines shown inside the
monopole and access ports sealed, no advertising shall be installed, should the antenna arrays, be lowered
in the future to a height that is below a removable section of the monopole, the tower owner shall then
remove this upper section that is no longer in use. The applicant has asked that we make this addition
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that regardless of a length of time any section of the monopole is removed, pursuant to this condition,
the tower owner may restore such sections of the monopole if needed to raise the antenna arrays to a
height permitted by the SEP. Any noise generated by the development shall not violate provisions of the
Botetourt County Noise Ordinance and All other specifications and general provisions shall be met as
required by the Botetourt County Zoning Ordinances and in no instance shall the zoning conditions
exempt a project from any local, state or federal development requirements, except where allowed by
the Zoning Ordinance. I believe that that will conclude my presentation. I will be happy to take questions,
and also note it that I believe Mr. Alvis, I hope I pronounced his name correctly, is here and prepared to
give a presentation as well. Thank you.
Mr. Kidd: Back to the distance to the nearest structure… what was your distance?
Mrs. Pendleton: 596 to the nearest off-site.
Mr. Kidd: They listed the 613 and what I was reading and off of their own map, it looked like 596 ….
…
Mr. Foster: State your name and address please.
Mr. Alvis: Yes, sir. Good evening, my name is Charlie Alvis, I’m an attorney with Williams Mullen in the
City of Charlottesville. My address is 321 East Main St. Suite 400 in Charlottesville, and I’m here tonight
on behalf of Verizon Wireless, also with Stuart Squier, GDN Sites, he’s the zoning manager, the consultant
that helped prepare the application. I have a brief presentation, before I get started, let me just respond
to your question here. You’re absolutely right, our materials are incorrect about the distance to the
nearest off-site residential structure. We apologize for the error, we’ll have to correct that in our materials
as we received the application. This is an aerial view of the site; this is more of what you’ve seen already.
I just wanted to point out a couple of features, which is the tower would be at this red pin you see, and
then that’s near an existing gravel road that cuts through the field there, attached to the farm. And
running sort of diagonal across this parcel is the transmission line, that that is already there of course,
very tall structures, with very high voltage, electricity transmission lines, and you can see a circle sort of
the other the nearest large tower, that is sort of right in line with the proposed location of this wireless
monopole. And just to point out that this this very prominent visual feature already exists on this parcel,
so the location of course is sited north for access and not to interfere with those transmission lines. But
those are already there. The wire Verizon wireless telecom would be you know, generally are, would be
interested in collocating using existing structures or telecommunications equipment. These particular
transmission line structures are not built in a way that allows Verizon to … , so that’s the reason why a
separate structure is proposed, although it is sited near existing infrastructure which is already, you know,
part of the landscape. The objectives of this site are coverage and capacity is that coverage to increase
the ability of the signal to reach customers and members of the community and visitors to the county and
capacities to be able to handle increased demand for wireless technology as more and more folks are
using broadband and wireless for everyday comforts. So to serve the residences and farms in the area and
the roadways, and those traveling on the business and visiting the county for … purposes. So here is a
slide that shows the nearest proposed and improved and built Verizon facilities and the network that exist
right now. So the green pin is the proposed site, and the green circles around that pin are one mile, two
mile, three mile radiuses to sorta show what the need for a tower in this area, as you can see the yellow
ones exist and there’s not any yellow ones very near this site. And the purple fuchsia colored ones are
have been approved, they’re in the process of being built. The Spreading Springs site, which the Planning
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Commission and Board of Supervisors approved last year is in the process to be built in 2022. As you can
see, you know, it’s give or take, about a mile away, a little over a mile away from the proposed Wheatland
site. The reason that that’s so near is because there’s a ridge that runs in-between two and the Spreading
Springs site would do not very good job of serving the areas it would south west of that ridge and likewise
the Wheatland side the … would not really reach the areas of the northeast as well, and so this, when the
engineers look for places to put those new monopoles, they look for ways to ways to increase the
coverage and natural features like a ridge line play into that. This is just another slide with some examples
of why this is a …, excuse me, why wireless is such an essential utility, is it 75% of 911 calls are made on a
wireless device and you can see the number of landlines decline as well as wireless use continues. And in
fact, the number of customers who only have a cell phone rises and rises every year. So these are
important for public safety and other emergency services that the county has a great interest in providing.
Again another slide just about the data usages that more of our folks do things at home, doing work,
school, functions of life that have moved online, the demand for data has increased and that brings to
the capacity issue Verizon’s network has to be able to serve, to serve the need that’s out there and the
demand that’s out there. And again, and during the pandemic, as more and more things to do online, it’s
even more important you see these high percentages of increasing demand in time period compared
before the pandemic and during the pandemic as we all, I think most of us are aware a lot of this will
probably continue even after all this has passed. So with that said, I’d like to go a little bit more in detail
on the site. This is the shot of the proposed site plan, this … application. The dark sort of the dark big
black diamond square shape right in the middle is the compound where the lease area of Verizon would
inside which Verizon installed equipment, and so 100 foot by 100 foot, and there would be fenced
compound, within that, that would be 80 foot by 80 foot, the existing road the existing route road off of
Goad Road, which serve as the access point, and there would be a slight … access the compound itself,
there would be a little jog off to the north and that would be installed in gravel and be 12 feet wide and
grass and conditions of lease would have a 20 foot wide access utility easement along that front portion
of the access, the existing access off of Goad Road. And this is just a zoom of the facility, the lease area,
and the compound will look like the monopoles … virtually … … in the middle you can see over on the right
side of your screen the … the existing access road, the darker blacks … the bottom the screen where the
new portion to be built, … allow the service vehicles to come in, service vehicles can then turn around,
and you’ll also see there’s proposed landscaping and planting outside that compound that screens the
equipment, from those views nearby, along Goad Road. This is a section that shows the elevation of the
of the monopole and the equipment down here below, it would be, the pole itself is 195 feet, with a four
foot lightning rod, for a 199 feet total proposed. Lighting is not required under the FAA regulations, so it
would not be illuminated at night. The application does request that the county standard amount arrays
be depicted here with just the one array since that Verizon would put up for its own use, but there would
be opportunities for other carriers …emergency services to install equipment on this tower and that’s run
through a third-party that Verizon uses to manage it’s building issues. So that … introduce photographs …
and simulations that I’d like to show. The way I’ve organized these, I’ve kind of done the perimeter, the
outside shots first, and then view forward … very near the site, … to the end. You’ll see as in the
surrounding area, it it you’ll be able to see, this this over the tree tops, over the ridge, nearby hills and
things, the most noticeable impacts, just really right up on this proposed site, topography here. This is
from Trevey Road, southwest of the site, and that orange area with in the middle points to where the
balloon is flying, and this photo simulation that tower has been proposed … aluminum and sky … situation
like this, with the clouds in the sky there. Here this is from Wheatland Road, southwest, again just barely
poking over the trees and so underneath the far mountain ridge line there. This is from Pine Have Road
to west, visibility as you can see, from Bear Wallow Road to northeast … From Loope Lane to southeast,
obviously this is pretty far away location… difficult to see on this picture. And this is from Goad Road,
where the road forks, right where the first turn off is on the right side there, and obviously pretty
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significant impact from this particular vantagepoint. This is on Goad Road right to the north, I’m not
exactly sure, but this is probably a couple of hundred feet away, so you get the sense of …obviously these
photographs were taken from further away. With that I’m happy to take any questions.
Mr. Thurman: How many different levels of arrays can be added to the pole?
Mr. Alvis: I think it’s a total of three, right? That’s what the application.
Mrs. Pendleton: I think it was four.
Mr. Alvis: I’m sorry, three additional. That’s right, it’s a total of four. And it would be lower.
Mr. Thurman: What to they take, four feet, five feet, six feet, ten?
Mr. Alvis: I think Stuart could talk.
Mr. Squier: they’re typically ten feet apart.
Mr. Alvis: Typically ten feet.
Mr. Thurman: Ten feet.
Mr. B. Nicely: I’m curious, on the proposed Spreading Spring, do you know the elevation between
Spreading Spring and Goad Road?
Mr. Alvis: ...
Mr. B. Nicely: Just curious, I mean they’re pretty darn close together, I’m just wondering if it might serve
the same area.
Mr. Alvis: I mean, all I can say about that is that these towers and ... cost money for Verizon undertaking
and wouldn’t be here asking if they thought it wouldn’t serve a need and network. And so I understand
the concern about it being close to a site recently approved, but the engineers know ... that I can convey
it for you.
Mr. Thurman: What does your radius show for Spreading Spring? Less than two miles?
Mr. Alvis: It is definitely less than two miles away.
Mr. Foster: Typically they’re not close together are they? Two miles?
Mr. Alvis: Really depends on the topography, and ... two three miles more typical in this case... needed
to serve here...
Mr. Foster: OK.
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Mr. Kidd: Going along that same line of thought, got another question for you too. We’ve got Spreading
Springs and the Prease tower, want to make sure when I say that Prease tower was the last one we
approved on Kevin Marshall’s piece of land.
Mrs. Pendleton: Yes.
Mr. Kidd: There’s nothing on that tower, either one, according to information I’ve got today, that the
tower is up, nothing on it. I mean, it looks like between Spreading Springs, Prease, you’d have pretty ample
coverage to what you’ve got marked out here on the map. More of a statement than question. The other
thing, how many of the, I have seen the towers mounted on the electrical towers, how many of those
were looked at to possibly beef up and mount the antennas on those towers?
Mr. Alvis: Well Mr. Kidd, I dont, I can’t really answer your question because I don’t have the technical
knowledge. I can ask the question and look into, and get you an answer later. But I can tell you that when
we did Spreading Springs and the question came up, and ... it’s the exact same position, and it just has to
do with the way structures are built, and the weight of the equipment, and I’m not sure if it’s the way it’s
mounted or what, but the equipment is not compatible with ... structure.
Mr. Kidd: I don’t have any more questions at this time.
Mr. Foster: Is that the only site you looked at?
Mr. Alvis: The only site? ... I don’t have any information on.
Mr. Foster: Since they’re so close together, I’m just curious as to whether another site might be sufficient.
Did you look at any other sites?
Mr. Squire: What we did, we issued what’s called a search ring by the radio engineers, and so they give us
an approximate location and say go investigate this area, find a site that’s cool here. And so our real
estate would have looked at other properties, but I don’t know the full history of that, and it’s process ...
for years, so I couldn’t say who else they might have approached or you know what other areas they
looked at within this ring. This is the least deal we ended up closing. The reason the tower structures
weren’t used is because the towers don’t have structural capacity, to carry the antennas and equipment,
in some cases they can be upgraded, but it’s really a difficult long process, because it’s owned by the
power company, so it’s really up to AEP to upgrade their structures. So, it’s just easier and quicker to you
know... sometimes it might be impossible altogether to get them to do that, it’s not their main priority to
give the wireless industry structures to collocate.
Mr. Foster: So that wasn’t investigated?
Mr. Squire: It was investigated, but the structures are not suitable for the equipment.
Mr. Thurman: ... I’m not familiar with that. Can they be upgraded?
Mr. Squire: They have to be replaced entirely with a taller structure that is capable of carrying...
Mr. Thurman: Redesigned?
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Mr. Squire: Right, those are the lattice tower types of, they would probably have to be upgraded with
monopole, which would be...
Mr. Thurman: Since you’re .... you said there had been other locations investigated.
Mr. Squire: I know, but I don’t know the history...
Mr. Thurman: My question would be how long ago. Recently or in the last ten years? We’ve had a lot of
cell towers recently, so I’m wondering if that was a, how recent this was investigated?
Mr. Squire: I honestly couldn’t say when they first began looking at this ring. It takes years to develop,
I’m sorry, I can’t answer.
Mr. Foster: Could I get you to state your name and address?
Mr. Squire: Yeah, I apologize, my name is Stuart Squire, Richmond, Virginia, I represent Verizon through
GDN sites as the Zoning Manager, and I was the applicant on this. Sorry for not...
Mr. Foster: That’s ok. Any questions?
Mrs. Pendleton: Chairman, I may add a point of clarification since the question was directed to me from
the applicant. The application calls for the proposed tower up to four additional collocations. So for your
information, it looks like the application is saying up to five arrays.
Mr. Foster: Thank you very much, we appreciate it. We have some people that have signed up to speak,
and since her name has already been mentioned, we’ll start with Teresa Simmons.
Mrs. Simmons: Good evening, I’m Teresa Simmons, My home is at 641 Goad Road, Fincastle VA and I
have lived on this site for 24 years with my husband Phillip and our children Olivia and Ainsley. We are
lifelong residents of Botetourt County. We are requesting the planning commission NOT approve the
proposed Verizon “Wheatland” tower. While on a walk in the summer of 2021, I was intrigued by a balloon
hovering over property along Goad Road. At the same time as I was watching the balloon, I noticed a
strange vehicle riding back and forth on Goad Road. I stopped the driver to ask if he was involved with the
balloon. You can imagine my surprise when the driver explained that the balloon indicated the location of
a proposed cell phone tower, which would be only a few hundred feet away from the end of our driveway.
I had no knowledge of this plan was occurring and was quite shocked. I am sure you can understand my
feelings. After all, who here wants to have a cell tower constructed directly across from your driveway?
So I quickly reviewed the Comprehensive Plan, and I have sections that were cited earlier in Section 3, the
Scenic Resource Initiatives, and in Section 5, the Cultural and Environmental Resources Objectives. These
items clearly articulate projects should “enhance, preserve and protect areas of natural and rural
significance” and it specifically states in regards to communication towers they “should minimize the
visibility of wireless communication towers.” Verizon plans or proposes to place the tower in an open
field. Certainly, a more inconspicuous location for a 199’ tower can be found in order to align with the
commitments as stated in the Comprehensive Plan to protect our natural environment. With regards to
the purpose of the tower, better cell service and improved WiFi, our cell phone service at 641 Goad Road
is consistently dependable and of high quality. With regards to the purpose of the tower, better cell
service and improved Verizon and other providers also currently offer WiFi data packages to the residents
of this area. In addition, if greater speed and increased data amounts are needed, the county’s broadband
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will be in place in less than 2 years and it will fulfill this need plus it will be aligned with the objectives of
the Comprehensive Plan. Our residential structure is the one that’s closest to the tower. View 7 of the
proposal is what I will see standing across from my driveway if this project is approved. Currently, this
same view allows us to see the Blue Ridge Mountains without obstruction. Yes the electric towers are
there, but they were there when I built the property, so I knew what I had signed up for. We built our
home around this view and do not want to lose it. As stated in the Comprehensive Plan on page 50, “The
County’s scenery is critical to the rural character and is one of its most distinguishing features. The Blue
Ridge Mountains are a national attraction and derive their popularity from spectacular views. Tourism
and nature-based leisure draw on the beauty of the region and have significant economic impact.
Furthermore, County residents value the beauty of their natural surroundings.” I hope that you will agree
with us and vote to deny this project so that we can maintain our beautiful Blue Ridge Mountain view
shed. And you can compare the two at the end of my email with the view from my porch, versus ... Thank
you.
Mr. Foster: Stan Strickler.
Mr. Strickler: Good evening, my name is Stan Strickler, my residence is 245 Loope Lane, Buchanan, VA. l
live at the residence that you would have seen in view number eight, the presentation, it would have
been shot above the driveway with board fence and with the tower in the distance. I don’t actually spend
a lot of time at the bottom of my driveway... mailbox... I would look at the back of my residence and would
see the proposed cell tower there. As you look at the front of my residence, there was a mention earlier
this evening, I think it was called Prease tower, that’s the tower that’s close to the Texaco at Interstate
81. That’s the tower I see out of the front of my residence. And so my request this evening is to ask the
Planning Commission respectfully, that you deny the request based off the number of towers that are
accruing in our area, and as stated just earlier in reference to the infrastructure the County is putting in
place, broadband, this is a rural area, it’s not a highly densly populate area, and so the amount of service
that is there, as a resident, I have an issue with cell phone service that’s there. And so based off of the
facts that have been mentioned earlier, ... again I respectfully ask that you deny the request for the
additional tower. Thank you for your consideration.
Mr. Foster: Thank you. Laura Strickler.
Mrs. Strickler: I’m Lauralee Strickler and I live at 245 Loope Lane, my husband Stan Strickler, I echo his
comments. We currently look out the front of our house at one tower. We do not need to look at another
tower, and I request that you deny it.
Mr. Foster: Phillip Simmons.
Mr. Simmons: My name is Phillip Simmons, 641 Goad Road, twenty-four years ago when we bought the
property where we now live, I drew the plans for my house, I built my house, set the front end of my
house facing the Blue Ridge Mountains with southern exposure, expecting to live the rest of my life here
in the woods, and not a bunch of things growing up in my front yard. This proposed tower is less than 600
feet from my house. Directly out of the three big windows on the front of my house, I can look at the
mountains. When this tower goes in, I’ll see a possible array of 60 feet of however wide this thing is the
rest of my life. I respectfully ask that you deny this request and would appreciate it. Thank you very much.
Mr. Foster: Thank you. That’s all the requests I have. Is there anyone else that wants to speak?

DRAFT
Mr. Alvis: I just wanted to add one thing. Of course, I appreciate the community members and the
neighbors discussing their views. One thing I wanted to mention just as a matter is the Zoning Ordinance
is the requirement for the setback for the nearest offsite residential structure for wireless
telecommunication facility like this in the county’s ordinance is 200% of the proposed tower height, so
the setback will be 398 feet, and 641 Goad Road is well over that at 596 feet. This was certainly planned
in accordance and well exceeds the expectations set by the county’s zoning ordinance.
Mr. Foster: Hearing no one else, I will close the public hearing. We’ll discuss this among ourselves, and
Mr. Kidd we’ll start with you.
Mr. Kidd: Much like the cell phone tower we looked at on the Entsminger property, I am by far not satisfied
that this tower has been researched, that this is the best and only location. I feel like it’s just as the
Entsminger tower, I feel like it’s in just as the Entsminger tower, it’s in the viewshed of too many people,
I feel like there’s a better location for it that would serve the same purpose. I can’t support this project.
Mr. Foster: Mr. Nicely.
Mr. B. Nicely: I’m not an expert, but I agree, I’m looking at existing towers, many of them I’ve personally
been to over the years. The other proposed towers … much better suited, and it seems like we have a
whole lot of overlapping in a small area, in my opinion, as the crow flies. I agree with Mr. Kidd, I think we
can find a better location, or let’s see how the others turn out.
Mr. Thurman: I agree with those comments, plus the fact that don’t know how long ago… there’s a bunch
of pins on that map. If this was done at the same time as that was, would make a lot better potential
areas.
Mr. Foster: I’m having a difficult time supporting this also, based on everything that’s been said, I still
have concerns about what sites were looked at, is there a better site, I know a lot of the towers aren’t
pretty, but we try to camouflage, particularly if they’re close to a wooded area, actually we have one in
Blue Ridge that looks like a silo, so I think I’m agreeing with the rest of the commission. Ready for a vote?
Mr. Kidd: You looking for a motion?
Mr. Foster: Yes.
Mr. Kidd: Are we doing the commission permit first? Are we going to do them separate or do them both
together?
Mr. Kidd: I make a motion that the commission permit be forwarded to the Board of Supervisors with a
recommendation of denial, based on zoning ordinance section 25-583.
Mr. Foster: Do I have a second?
Mr. B. Nicely: I’ll second.
Mr. Foster: Any discussion? All in favor say, “Yes”.
Mr. Foster, Mr. Kidd, Mr. Thurman, Mr. B. Nicely: Yes.
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Mr. Foster: Opposed, “No”.
Mrs. Goad: Thank you.
The motion to forward the commission permit with a recommendation of denial was approved 4:0:0:1,
with the following recorded vote:
YES
NO:
ABSTAIN:
ABSENT:

Mr. B. Nicely, Mr. Kidd, Mr. Foster, Mr. Thurman
None
None
Mr. H. Nicely

Mr. Kidd: And I’ll make a motion that the Special Exceptions Permit be forwarded to the Board of
Supervisors with the recommendation of denial, based on zoning ordinance section 25-583.
Mr. Foster: Do we have a second?
Mr. B. Nicely: Second.
Mr. Foster: Any discussion? All in favor say, “Yes”.
Mr. Foster, Mr. Kidd, Mr. Thurman, Mr. B. Nicely: Yes.
Mr. Foster: Opposed, “No”.
Mrs. Goad: Thank you.
The motion to forward the Special Exception Permit for a telecommunications facility with a
recommendation of denial was approved 4:0:0:1, with the following recorded vote:
YES:
NO:
ABSTAIN:
ABSENT:

Mr. B. Nicely, Mr. Kidd, Mr. Foster, Mr. Thurman
None
None
Mr. H. Nicely

Mr. Foster: Thank you for coming.
Other business
NOTE: A copy of the PowerPoint presentation has been placed in the book of minutes.
Mr. McCoy greeted the Planning Commission. Mr. McCoy described his experience and education, then
explained this was a brief focus and a kick off of this process started in 2019. Mr. McCoy emphasized that
he wanted a collaborative process tonight and in future meetings, with questions and concerns voiced at
any point. He stated the project overview was last done in 2010, with some updates to the plan since that
time. Mr. McCoy said the Comprehensive Plan was the single most important document for local
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governments because it is both a policy tool and land use planning tool, and he wanted it to be reflective
of the community. He noted the Comprehensive Plan is also required by the state code. He displayed a
slide of State Code Section 15.2-2232 defining the purpose of harmonious development, discussed
reviewing the plan every five years, and the project overview with three phases. Mr. McCoy noted the
community involvement phase was largely already completed, the project was now in the drafting phase,
and then planning elements, ending with the adoption. Mr. McCoy said his goal was to cover three
chapters every other month, to receive feedback at each session, incorporate that in the chapter strategy,
and a tentative goal was to complete with public hearings in the summer of 2022 to have a new plan by
next year. He mentioned that Chapters 1 and 2 would be discussed tonight, Chapters 3-10, would have a
discussion on planning elements, goal, strategies, and implementation. Mr. McCoy noted this structure
had been used in other plans, and would be a good framework for us. He asked for any thoughts or
concerns.
Mr. Kidd asked about what was meant by mobility.
Mr. Mccoy responded that mobility was another word for transportation, and encompasses other modes.
He said it would be the traditional transportation chapter, and would include pedestrian, travel, transit,
highways, traditional roads, noting that this chapter would have to be reviewed by VDOT. Alluding to the
required VDOT review time period of 90 days, Mr. McCoy noted this chapter might move it up a bit to
allow for the review time.
Mr. Kidd wanted to know if the plan was inclusive of community services and facilities.
Mr. McCoy said that chapter would house schools, fire houses, libraries, needs reflected by the
community, versus realities like budgeting, new schools.
Mr. Kidd inquired about water and sewer mapping.
Mr. McCoy indicated that would be updated with a consultant. Updated mapping would also be included
and touched on in community services.
Mr. Kidd asked if it would just be mapping or if there would be some sort of guidance where public water
and public sewer would be headed.
Mr. McCoy said he was open to any thoughts, and would have this conversation as a department.
Mr. Kidd mentioned high speed internet, if there was a map and if it would be included.
Mr. McCoy answered that would be included as a map as a statutory requirement, probably in Chapter 9,
Community Services.
Mr. Foster asked if water and sewer would be taken into consideration for older subdivisions having
problems, noting he had seen a lot of septic tanks going in up the road.
Mr. McCoy said he would will work with folks in the department to try and find a better way to address
those concerns.
Mr. Kidd emphasized that he wanted to make sure this would be addressed.
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Mr. McCoy addressed public outreach, noting much of it was conducted some in 2019, and more would
be done moving forward. To ensure that, Mr. McCoy said outreach would be conducted in 2022, with
virtual engagement, future land use and community facilities. He summarized a majority of respondents
were longtime residents and see themselves living here for years to come; respondents think there are
too few housing options; a majority of respondents are somewhat or very concerned about loss of open
space. Mr. McCoy highlighted community meetings, noting one had been held in each magisterial district
with more than total of 100 attendees. Next, he discussed the community profile, update to the 2016
population and demographics chapter. Key takeaways noted were the growing and aging population,
highly educated population, newer and well fitted housing, strong economic and financial wellbeing for
the county and citizens. Mr. McCoy said this information will be used to develop a plan. He talked about
Chapters 1 and 2, introduction about the plan, statutory requirements, brief summary of public
engagement, and discussion of Covid 19. Chapter 2, framework, sets the plan’s vision, which he read aloud
to see if there were any plan changes, as he asked for any thoughts or feedback about vision. Mr. McCoy
encouraged the Planning Commission to email him, noting he would be working on planning elements,
arts, natural environment, local economy, housing, land use, mobility, next steps, working to incorporate
feedback, also draft next sessions. He then thanked the Planning Commission for their time.
Mr. Kidd commented that this was ambitious.
Adjournment
There being no other business, on motion by Mr. Kidd at 7:31 PM, seconded by Mr. Thurman, which was
approved 4:0:0:1, the Planning Commission adjourned with the following recorded vote:
YES:
NO:
ABSTAIN:
ABSENT:

Mr. B. Nicely, Mr. Kidd, Mr. Foster, Mr. Thurman
None
None
Mr. H. Nicely

Mr. Kidd called the December 13, 2021, meeting of the Botetourt County Planning Commission to order
at 6:02 PM, in the Botetourt County Administration Center at 57 S. Center Drive, Daleville, Virginia.
PRESENT:

Mr. Steven L. Kidd, Vice-Chairman
Mr. Brandon Nicely, Member
Mr. William Thurman, Member
Mr. Hiawatha Nicely, Jr., Member
Mr. Billy Martin Sr., Ex-Officio Member
Ms. Emily Stubblefield, County Attorney
Mrs. Nicole Pendleton, Director of Community Development
Mr. Drew Pearson, Zoning Administrator
Mr. Nicholas Baker, Code Enforcement Officer
Mr. Jon McCoy, Long-Range Planner

ABSENT:

Mr. Sam Foster, Chairman

Mr. Kidd opened the meeting and welcomed those in attendance. He then introduced staff and Planning
Commission members, and read the procedures for the public hearing, noting that anyone wishing to
speak in person should complete a “Request to Speak” form and provide it to a staff member.
Mr. Kidd then stated that he would like to acknowledge Mr. William Thurman. He noted that Mr.
Thurman’s term as the Valley District representative on the Planning Commission expires on
January 1, 2022, and Mr. Thurman has decided to not seek reappointment to another four-year term.
Mr. Kidd requested that Mr. Thurman return at a future meeting so he can properly be thanked for his
many years of service on the Planning Commission.
Mr. Kidd then stated the Board of Supervisors’ public hearing on the Zoning Ordinance text amendment
request will be held at 3:00 PM on December 21, 2021, and the SEP public hearing request at 6:00 PM at
the Botetourt County Administration Center. He also announced that, depending on the upcoming public
hearing schedule, the Planning Commission’s next field review would be at 3:15 PM on either Thursday,
February 10, 2022, or Thursday, March 10, 2022, in the Kroger parking lot or the members might receive
a virtual field review depending upon requests. Mr. Kidd stated that the Commission is not having a
meeting in January 2022.
Mr. Kidd then recognized Mrs. Susan Fain, Secretary to the County Administrator, who is retiring from the
County after 41 years of service. Mr. Kidd noted that he has great respect for and thanked her for her
many years of service to the County. He noted that Mrs. Fain is present at tonight’s meeting to take
minutes as Mrs. Laura Goad was unable to attend.
Public hearing
Amsterdam District: DMH Partners VA, LLC, with Jatin Patel (contractual purchaser) request a Special
Exception Permit, with possible conditions, in the Shopping Center (SC) Use District to permit a building
height that exceeds the by-right height of thirty-five (35) feet, in accordance with Sec. 25-583. Special
Exceptions and Sec. 25-283. Uses Permissible by Special Exception, (6) maximum height up to sixty (60)
feet, pending amendments to the Zoning Ordinance. The parcel is located at the southeast corner of
Market Ridge Lane (State Route 1192) and Roanoke Road (US Route 220), Daleville, VA and is identified
on the Real Property Identification Maps of Botetourt County as Section 101, Parcel 109B. Deferred from
November 8, 2021. Applicant has requested to withdraw their application.
Mr. Pearson stated that this SEP is to construct a building at a height that exceeds the by-right height
allowance of 35’ in the Shopping Center Use District. He noted that the applicant has provided written
correspondence to staff requesting to withdraw this application. Mr. Pearson stated that this public
hearing has been advertised; therefore, the Commission will need to vote to approve or deny the
withdrawal request.
On motion by Mr. H. Nicely, seconded by Mr. B. Nicely, and carried by the following recorded vote, the
Commission approved the request in the Amsterdam District, from DMH Partners VA, LLC, with Jatin Patel
(contractual purchaser) to table the request for a Special Exception Permit, with possible conditions, in
the Shopping Center (SC) Use District to permit a building height that exceeds the by-right height of thirtyfive (35) feet, in accordance with Sec. 25-583 Special Exceptions and Sec. 25-283. Uses Permissible by
Special Exception, (6) maximum height up to sixty (60) feet, pending amendments to the Zoning
Ordinance. The parcel is located at the southeast corner of Market Ridge Lane (State Route 1192) and

Roanoke Road (US Route 220), Daleville, VA and is identified on the Real Property Identification Maps of
Botetourt County as Section 101, Parcel 109B.
AYES: Mr. B. Nicely, Mr. H. Nicely, Mr. Thurman, Mr. Kidd
NAYS: None
ABSENT: Mr. Foster
ABSTAINING: None
Public hearing
Amsterdam District: GW Botetourt Commons, LLC, requests a Special Exception Permit, with possible
conditions, in the Shopping Center (SC) Use District in accordance with Sec. 25-583. Special Exceptions
and Sec. 25-283. Uses Permissible by Special for the proposed use of Medical care facility for a Chiropractic
Clinic at 133 Commons Parkway (State Route 1044), Daleville, VA, identified on the Real Property
Identification Maps of Botetourt County as Section 101(14), Parcel 7.
Mr. Pearson stated that this request is for a medical care facility in the Shopping Center Use District. He
noted that this 2.8-acre parcel contains a 15,819 square foot existing building in the section of Botetourt
Commons that contains the Goodwill Industries retail store. He noted that the 1,375 square foot area
proposed for this chiropractic clinic formerly contained a Lil Caesar’s restaurant.
After discussion, Mr. Pearson noted that the applicants will submit a building permit application; however,
no additional site work is necessary. He noted that staff is recommending one condition be considered
for inclusion with this request—“The special exception permit for the Medical Care Facility shall not allow
a drug rehabilitation clinic that treats drug addictions.”—to restrict the location of a drug rehabilitation
clinic in this space.
Mr. Pearson stated that the applicant has no issues with this condition being placed on the request and
noted that the applicant is present to answer any questions.
After questioning by Mr. Kidd, it was noted that the Commission members had no questions for the
applicant regarding this request.
The applicant stated that he did not have any additional information to include with Mr. Pearson’s
presentation on this request.
After questioning by Mr. Kidd, Dr. Aaron Trochim, the applicant, stated that he had no objections to the
staff’s recommended condition for this request.
After questioning by Mr. Kidd, it was noted that there was no one else present who wished to speak
regarding this request. The public hearing was then closed.
Mr. H. Nicely stated that he has no objections to this request as it seems to be a good use for this site.
On motion by Mr. H. Nicely, seconded by Mr. B. Nicely, and carried by the following recorded vote, the
Commission recommended approval of the request in the Amsterdam District from GW Botetourt
Commons, LLC, for a Special Exception Permit in the Shopping Center (SC) Use District in accordance with
Sec. 25-583. Special Exceptions and Sec. 25-283. Uses Permissible by Special for the proposed use of
Medical care facility for a Chiropractic Clinic at 133 Commons Parkway (State Route 1044), Daleville, VA,
identified on the Real Property Identification Maps of Botetourt County as Section 101(14), Parcel 7, with
the following condition, and on the basis that the requirements of Section 25-583 of the Zoning Ordinance
have been satisfied, and that the proposal would serve the public necessity, convenience, general welfare,
and is good zoning practice.
AYES: Mr. B. Nicely, Mr. H. Nicely, Mr. Thurman, Mr. Kidd
NAYS: None
ABSENT: Mr. Foster
ABSTAINING: None
1. The special exception permit for the Medical Care Facility shall not allow a drug rehabilitation
clinic that treats drug addictions.
Public hearing
The Botetourt County Board of Supervisors propose text amendments to amend certain districts to modify
the requirements for the permitting of multiple accessory buildings as follows: Chapter 25, Zoning, Article
II . - District Regulations Generally, Division 3. – Rural Residential District RR, Sec. 25-113. Uses Permissible
by Special Exception: remove (22) Additional accessory buildings in excess of number permitted; Sec. 25-

115(b) remove the restriction of no greater than two (2) accessory buildings; Sec. 25-114(a)(c): add
maximum lot coverage of seven (7) percent for accessory buildings; Division 4. – Low Density Residential
District R-1, Sec. 123. Uses permissible by special exception: remove (16) Additional accessory buildings
in excess of number permitted, Sec. 25-125(a)(1)d.2. and (c)(1)d.2.: remove the restriction of no greater
than one (1) accessory building permitted and Sec. 25-124(a)(3) & (b)(3) to add maximum lot coverage of
seven (7) percent for accessory buildings; Division 5. – Low-Medium Density Residential R-2, Sec. 25-143.
Uses Permissible by Special Exception to remove (18) Additional accessory building in excess of number
permitted, Sec. 25-145(a)(4)b to remove the restriction of not more than one (1) accessory building
permitted and Sec. 25- 144(c) to add maximum lot coverage of seven (7) percent for accessory buildings;
Division 6. – Medium Density Residential District R-3, Sec. 25-163. Uses Permissible by Special Exception
to remove (23) Additional accessory buildings in excess of number permitted, Sec. 25-165(6)b to remove
the restriction of not more than one (1) accessory building permitted and Sec. 25- 164(c) to add maximum
lot coverage of seven (7) percent for accessory buildings; Division 7. – High Density Residential District R4, Sec. 25-169. – Uses Permissible by Special Exception to remove (19) Additional accessory buildings in
excess of number permitted, Sec. 25-171(4)b to remove the restriction of not more than one (1) accessory
building permitted and Sec. 25- 170(c) to add maximum lot coverage of seven (7) percent for accessory
buildings; and Article IV. – Supplemental Regulations, Division 1 . Use Regulations, Section 25-431.
Accessory uses and structures to amend (d)(8) to remove an exception that allows accessory structures in
the Agricultural (A-1) and Forest Conservation (FC) use districts prior to the establishment of a principal
structure and add (9) to require accessory structures to meet principal structure building setbacks when
located within five (5) feet of the principal structure.
Mr. Pearson and Mr. Baker then presented this request. Mr. Pearson stated that these proposed
amendments will modify the requirements for a SEP for placement of second accessory buildings in
residential use districts.
He noted that the current maximum lot coverage for all principal and accessory structures in the RR, R-1,
and R-2 Use Districts is 20% and 50% for the R-3 and R-4 Use Districts and the amendments propose a
maximum of 7% lot coverage for accessory buildings. He further noted that the amendments clarify
regulations pertaining to accessory uses without a principal use.. Mr. Pearson stated that under
“Supplemental Regulations,” staff is also proposing amendments that require accessory structures to
meet side and rear building setbacks for principal structures when located less than 5’ from the principal
structure.
Mr. Pearson noted that the Zoning Office has received a lot of SEP requests in the past for the placement
of second accessory buildings especially in residential districts. He noted that, over the past few months,
staff has had some correspondence with the Commission members and Supervisors who were interested
in drafting amendments to remove provisions requiring a SEP for second accessory structures.
After discussion, Mr. Pearson stated that his office has second accessory structure applications “in the
pipeline” and other requests are on hold until a determination on these proposed amendments is made.
Mr. Pearson further stated that other sections of the Zoning Ordinance were reviewed for possible
revisions associated with the second accessory building provisions.
Mr. Pearson noted that staff is requesting that the Commission consider the following: remove the
requirement to obtain a SEP for an additional accessory building; administer a maximum lot coverage of
7% for accessory buildings in residential use districts; remove the exception that allows accessory
buildings to be constructed before the site’s principal building; and allow accessory buildings to be placed
within 5’ of a principal structure. He then reviewed each proposed amendment.
Mr. Pearson stated that these amendments are trying to strike a balance to ensure that the accessory
buildings “do not get too heavy” on the total maximum floor area/lot coverage.
After questioning by Mr. Kidd, Mr. Pearson stated that language clarifying maximum lot coverage to 20%
for all buildings would be a good addition to the amendments.
Mr. Pearson stated that the current ordinance could, in some districts, allow the construction/placement
of an accessory structure before a principal structure is constructed to allow the storage of
materials/equipment before a home is built. He noted that this language, in some districts, could also
allow a property owner to build an accessory structure/ garage before the residential structure to work
on personal vehicles, for example. He noted that there are many violations or issues that could occur on
a site as a result of this proposed wording.

Mr. Pearson stated that the goals of these proposed amendments are to make the ordinance more user
friendly; to reduce the time and expense of obtaining approvals for reasonable accessory structures ; and
to maintain an appropriate balance between the accessory and principal building’s size by adding the 7%
maximum threshold language.
Mr. Pearson stated that their research did not find any other area jurisdiction that required a SEP for a
second accessory building. He noted that the provision for 7% maximum lot coverage for accessory
buildings was taken from the Roanoke County Zoning Ordinance. Mr. Pearson stated that staff thought it
was a good idea to have consistent language with an adjacent locality to eliminate confusion over the
intent of the ordinance for any new residents moving to Botetourt from Roanoke.
Mr. Pearson then displayed an aerial photograph of a previous SEP request for a second accessory building
on Rachel Drive in Cloverdale. He noted that under the current ordinance provisions only the footprint of
the residential structure is considered when calculating the 7% maximum lot coverage requirement.
He then referenced a request from the Parrishes who have a R-1 zoned lot consisting of 0.29 acres.
Mr. Pearson noted that this small lot had limited space on the side yard and the owners wanted to place
an unattached aluminum carport immediately adjacent to their residence. He further noted that the
setback requirement for accessory structures in the R-1 district is 5’ from the property line. He noted that
the carport will function as, and appear to be, an addition to the residence.
After discussion, Mr. Pearson stated that amendments regarding principal and accessory uses are based
on language in the A-1 and FC use districts and are based on questions that staff receives on a regular
basis from the public. Mr. Pearson also noted that Mr. Baker, in his Code Enforcement duties, has seen a
considerable number of sites in the County that would be/are impacted by these proposed amendments.
Mr. B. Nicely noted that the occurrence of carports/accessory buildings being located immediately
adjacent to the residence is often seen in the County and this situation needs to be addressed in the
ordinance. He is in agreement with the suggestion from Mr. Kidd regarding 20% total lot coverage
language.
After questioning by Mr. H. Nicely, Mr. Pearson stated that, if the Planning Commission would like to
recommend approval of all proposed ordinance amendments, this can be accomplished in one motion.
Mr. H. Nicely stated that he has no objections to these requested amendments.
After questioning by Mr. Thurman, Mr. Baker stated that most of the ordinance violations regarding
accessory buildings occur in the Residential R-1 Use District.
After further questioning by Mr. Thurman regarding the 5’ setback requirement, Mr. Pearson stated that
the proposed amendments require that, if an accessory building acts and appears as an addition to the
principal structure, then it will be required to meet the setback provisions in effect for an addition.
Mr. Pearson stated that some residents who visit the Planning/Zoning Office regarding these types of
requests want to construct an addition to the principal structure; however, once they are informed of the
setback requirements, as an alternative, the citizen decides to construct a detached carport instead, but
place the carport within inches of the house, which effectively appears and functions like an addition to
the house.
Mr. Kidd stated that he believes that these proposed amendments will “clean up” questions that he has
had about these specific ordinance provisions and thanked the staff for their efforts and research into
adjacent localities’ language for similar uses.
After questioning by Mr. Kidd, it was noted that there was no one present to speak regarding this request.
The public hearing was then closed.
There being no further discussion, on motion by Mr. H. Nicely, seconded by Mr. Thurman, and carried by
the following recorded vote, the Planning Commission recommended approval of the attached
amendments to the following sections of the Botetourt County Zoning Ordinance to modify the
requirements for the permitting of multiple accessory buildings as follows: Chapter 25, Zoning, Article II .
- District Regulations Generally, Division 3. – Rural Residential District RR, Sec. 25-113. Uses Permissible
by Special Exception: remove (22) Additional accessory buildings in excess of number permitted; Sec. 25115(b) remove the restriction of no greater than two (2) accessory buildings; Sec. 25-114(a)(c): add
maximum lot coverage of seven (7) percent for accessory buildings; Division 4. – Low Density Residential
District R-1, Sec. 123. Uses permissible by special exception: remove (16) Additional accessory buildings

in excess of number permitted, Sec. 25-125(a)(1)d.2. and (c)(1)d.2.: remove the restriction of no greater
than one (1) accessory building permitted and Sec. 25-124(a)(3) & (b)(3) to add maximum lot coverage of
seven (7) percent for accessory buildings; Division 5. – Low-Medium Density Residential R-2, Sec. 25-143.
Uses Permissible by Special Exception to remove (18) Additional accessory building in excess of number
permitted, Sec. 25-145(a)(4)b to remove the restriction of not more than one (1) accessory building
permitted and Sec. 25- 144(c) to add maximum lot coverage of seven (7) percent for accessory buildings;
Division 6. – Medium Density Residential District R-3, Sec. 25-163. Uses Permissible by Special Exception
to remove (23) Additional accessory buildings in excess of number permitted, Sec. 25-165(6)b to remove
the restriction of not more than one (1) accessory building permitted and Sec. 25- 164(c) to add maximum
lot coverage of seven (7) percent for accessory buildings; Division 7. – High Density Residential District R4, Sec. 25-169. – Uses Permissible by Special Exception to remove (19) Additional accessory buildings in
excess of number permitted, Sec. 25-171(4)b to remove the restriction of not more than one (1) accessory
building permitted and Sec. 25- 170(c) to add maximum lot coverage of seven (7) percent for accessory
buildings; and Article IV. – Supplemental Regulations, Division 1 . Use Regulations, Section 25-431.
Accessory uses and structures to amend (d)(8) to remove an exception that allows accessory structures in
the Agricultural (A-1) and Forest Conservation (FC) use districts prior to the establishment of a principal
structure and add (9) to require accessory structures to meet principal structure building setbacks when
located within five (5) feet of the principal structure.
AYES: Mr. H. Nicely, Mr. Thurman, Mr. Kidd, Mr. B. Nicely
NAYS: None
ABSENT: Mr. Foster
ABSTAINING: None
Mr. H. Nicely and Mr. Thurman noted that a lot of work by staff was put into developing these
amendments and thanked them for their efforts.
Mrs. Pendleton then thanked Mr. Thurman for his commitment to the Planning Commission during his
tenure. Mrs. Pendleton stated that she has enjoyed working with him and appreciated his input on topics
brought before the Commission.
The Commission members also thanked Mr. Thurman for his commitment and dedication to the County
and thanked Mrs. Fain for her service to the County and wished her well in her retirement.
There being no further discussion, the meeting was adjourned at 6:44 P. M.
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SEP: PRIVATE KENNEL
PROJECT SUMMARY
Melinda Ann Simpson, founder of Kindred Souls K-9 Sanctuary (KSKS), requests a Special Exception Permit (SEP) for a
private kennel to provide hospice and palliative care for senior and special needs dogs in a home setting. Ms. Simpson
will take private ownership herself of the animals, providing care at the end of their life. The applicant will not accept
dogs from private citizens, opting instead to adopt from local shelters.

STAFF COMMENTS
The subject property is located in the Agricultural (A-1) Use District. A private kennel may be permitted by the board
of supervisors as a special exception use. In addition to zoning ordinance regulations, Botetourt County Code, Chapter
4, Animals and Fowl, Section 4-52, Special Provisions as to kennel dogs (c) states that no kennel shall be located within
100-foot from any residence other than that of the kennel owner. The applicant has indicated that dogs will be kept
inside the home, with no outdoor kennels constructed on the property nor any other exterior changes to the property
or structure. The applicant has indicated that the operation will begin with no more than five dogs with an upper limit
of 20 dogs anticipated at full capacity.

PLANNING COMMISSION ACTION
The Planning Commission is requested to make a recommendation to the Board of Supervisors as to the approval,
approval with conditions, or denial of the SEP. The Planning Commission and Board of Supervisors may impose
conditions as may be necessary to avoid, minimize, or mitigate any potentially adverse or injurious effect from the
granting of the SEP.

LEGAL ADVERTISEMENT
Amsterdam Magisterial District: Melinda Simpson requests a Special Exception Permit, with possible conditions, for a
private dog kennel for up to twenty (20) dogs in the Agricultural (A-1) Use District on a 3.47-acre parcel at 515 Etzler
Road, (Route 672) Troutville, VA in accordance with Sec. 25-583.- Special Exceptions of the Botetourt County Code,
and identified on the Real Property Identification Maps of Botetourt County as Section 87, Parcel 141A.

EXISTING CONDITIONS AND BACKGROUND
This SEP request is intended to allow the applicant to operate a non-profit corporation providing hospice and palliative
care for senior and special needs dogs in a home setting. The applicant has indicated that no more than 20 dogs will
be kept on site, which will only take place when resources become available to do so. The 3.47-acre parcel contains
the applicant’s primary residence, an attached two-car garage, an approximately 0.3-acre fenced backyard, an
enclosed chicken coop, and playhouse that will be utilized for on-site care including massages, therapy, and grooming.
Additionally, there is a shed and detached two-car garage for additional storage capacity. The primary residence is
approximately 6,000 square feet with a total of five bedrooms and three bathrooms. The nearest residence is roughly
300 feet from the fenced backyard.
The applicant indicates there will be no external changes made to any existing structures on the property, nor any
additional structures added. There will also be no signage accessory to this use. Solid waste will be regularly disposed
of in normal household trash and in the event of death the body will be removed and cremated at a local pet
crematorium.

SEP: Private Kennel

Page 1 of 4
February 2022

PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT
The applicant would like to keep a maximum of twenty (20) dogs on the property. The applicant is proposing no
external additions or modifications.to the property. The dogs will be kept in an existing fenced-in area of the yard when
outdoors. The applicant will take private ownership of the animals from local shelters, following appropriate licensing
procedures for pets. The applicant intends to provide palliative and hospice care for the animals. In the event of an
emergency or if the applicant is away from the premises for an extended period of time, a trusted sitter will be available
to care for the animals.

ADJACENT AND SURROUNDING USES/ZONING
Adjacent property uses are primarily comprised of open space and single-family homes. The Botetourt Sports
Complex is north of the property and across Etzler Road. There is an existing fenced area that will contain the dogs
anytime that they are allowed to go outside of the home. All property around the applicant’s property is zoned
Agricultural (A-1).

Zoning

Land Use

Agricultural (A-1)

Residential

South Agricultural (A-1)

Residential

East

Agricultural (A-1)

Residential

West

Agricultural (A-1)

Residential

North

ZONING ORDINANCE REQUIREMENTS
Sec. 25-601. - Definitions. - Kennel, private: Any building or land designed, arranged or used for the keeping, raising,
showing, or training of more than four (4) dogs over six (6) months or greater in age for the personal use of the owner
or occupant of the property.

Sec. 25-73. - Uses permissible by special exception. - (26) Kennel, private.
Sec. 25-583. - Special exceptions. - (a) Purpose. The special exception permit procedure is designed to provide the
board of supervisors with an opportunity for discretionary review of requests to establish or construct uses or
structures which have the potential for a deleterious impact upon the health, safety, and welfare of the public; and, in
the event such uses or structures are approved, the authority to impose conditions that are designed to avoid, minimize
or mitigate potentially adverse effects upon the community or other properties in the vicinity of the proposed use or
structure.

2010 COMPREHENSIVE PLAN
This area is identified on the Future Land Use Map as Medium Residential, which includes areas where suburban
patterns of residential development have occurred and are encouraged to occur in the future. This future land use
category recognizes that single family homes are the predominant land use in this category it does not preclude the
possibility for higher density residential such as townhomes and apartments.

TRAFFIC
VDOT did not express any concerns with the request, only commenting that the private kennel will not
adversely affect VDOT’s right-of-way.

FIRE AND RESCUE
The Fincastle Volunteer Fire and Rescue is located 7.4 miles from the subject property.
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PUBLIC COMMENT
Other than a verbal statement of support from the immediate neighbor that the applicant included in their
application, no other public comments have been received.

SUGGESTED CONDITIONS
If approved, staff suggests consideration of the following conditions:
1.

The private kennel shall be limited to no more than twenty (20) dogs.

2. Noise generated by the dogs shall not violate provisions of the Botetourt County Noise Ordinance.

SEP: Private Kennel
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DRAFT MOTIONS
APPROVAL
I move that the special exception permit for a private kennel on the property of Melinda Ann Simpson be
forwarded to the Board of Supervisors with a recommendation of approval with the conditions included in
the background report prepared by staff // OR approval subject to the following conditions:
1. (list conditions if modified)
2. ….
This recommendation is made on the basis that the requirements of Section 25-583 of the Zoning Ordinance
have been satisfied, and that the proposal would serve the public necessity, convenience, general welfare
and is good zoning practice.

DENIAL
I move that the special exception permit for a private kennel on the property of Melinda Ann Simpson be
forwarded to the Board of Supervisors with a recommendation of denial. Based upon Zoning Ordinance
Section 25-583 the following items have not been satisfied:
1.
2. (list findings/reasons for denial)

SEP: Private Kennel
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STEPHEN C. BRICH, P.E.
COMMISSIONER

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
714 South Broad Street
Salem, VA 24153

January 7, 2022
Ms. Nicole Pendleton
Director of Community Development
57 S. Center Drive
Daleville, VA 24083

RE:

Planning Commission Request
Special Exception – Animal Kennel on Property in A-1
Botetourt County
Route 672, Etzler Road

Dear Ms. Pendleton,
We have reviewed the above-mentioned special exception request and the Department has no
additional comments. It appears from the information provided that allowing an animal kennel
to operate on this property will not adversely impact the VDOT right of way. Any future
expansions or redevelopment of the parcel or alteration to the existing drive may require VDOT
review, approval, and permitting.
Should you have any questions, please do not hesitate to call. Thank you.
Sincerely,

Ashley C. Smith, P.E.
Assistant Resident Engineer/Land Use
VDOT Salem Residency

www.VirginiaDOT.org
WE KEEP VIRGINIA MOVING
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PLANTE; REZONING
PROJECT SUMMARY
Joel F. and Rietta L. Plante requests a rezoning from the Agricultural Rural (AR) Use District to the
Agricultural (A-1) Use District with possible proffered conditions for the purpose of operating a Homestay
short term rental use from their home located upon the subject property.

STAFF COMMENTS
The Agricultural Rural Residential (AR) Use District does not allow a Homestay short-term rental as a
permitted or special exception use. The Homestay short-term rental differs from the Cabin and cottage
short-term rental in that Homestay rents out a portion of the home with the owners continuing to reside in
the house and Cabin and cottage rents out the entire home to the guests. The applicants plan to utilize an
unused third bedroom in the home for the Homestay to supplement their fixed income.

PLANNING COMMISSION ACTION
The Planning Commission is requested to make a recommendation to the Board of Supervisors to approve,
approve with proffered conditions or deny the rezoning request.

LEGAL ADVERTISEMENT
Amsterdam District: Joel F. & Rietta L. Plante request a rezoning of a 4.26-acre parcel, with possible
proffered conditions, from the Agricultural Rural Residential (AR) Use District to the Agriculture (A-1) Use
District for agricultural uses and a Homestay, short-term rental, in accordance with Sec. 25-581.- Zoning map
amendment—Owner initiated. and Article II, Division 1. – Agricultural (A-1) Sec 25-72 (20).- Permitted Uses of the
Botetourt County Code. Located at 50 Ottaway Road (private road), Troutville, this parcel is identified on the
Real Property Identification Maps of Botetourt County as Section 101B(4), Parcel 24.

EXISTING CONDITIONS AND BACKGROUND
The 4.26-acre parcel contains a single-family home, detached garage and one accessory storage building.
The surrounding lots generally range from less than one (1) acre to five (5) acres in an area containing a
mixture of land uses that includes single-family residential, several businesses and forested lands that are
located in the Agricultural Rural (AR), Agricultural (A-1), and Business B-1 & B-3 Use Districts.

PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT
The applicant’s application indicates their desire to utilize a portion of their existing home as a Homestay
short-term rental. The applicant is currently only using two out of three available bedrooms of the home.
The applicant’s application states that they will use the third bedroom of their home for short-term rental
purposes and that in addition to supplementing their fixed income, it should not create an increased burden
on available public services and will create “use tax” benefits to Botetourt County.

Plante; Rezoning
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ADJACENT AND SURROUNDING USES/ZONING
Zoning

Land Use

North

Agricultural Rural (AR)

Agriculture

South

Agricultural Rural (AR)/Business (B3)

Agriculture/ Business

East

Agricultural (A-1)

Agriculture

West

Agricultural Rural (AR)/Business (B3)

Agriculture/ Business

ZONING ORDINANCE REQUIREMENTS
Sec. 25-112 and Sec. 25-113 of the Botetourt County Zoning Ordinance do not list Homestay (a short-term
rental) as a permitted use in the Agricultural Rural (AR) Use District. Sec. 25-72 does list Homestay, subject
to the supplemental regulations set forth in Sec. 25-434, as a permitted use in the Agricultural (A-1) Use
District. If approved, a short-term rental permit will be required.

2010 COMPREHENSIVE PLAN
This site area is identified on the Future Land Use Map as Medium Density Residential.

TRAFFIC
Ottaway Road is privately maintained, therefore, there is no VDOT traffic data for the road and VDOT does
not provide a review or comments. Currently, Ottaway Road serves two (2) business developed parcels and
seven (7) single-family dwellings.

FIRE AND RESCUE
The Read Mountain Fire and Rescue Department is 2.6 miles from this site.

UTILITIES
The property is served by private well and septic.

PUBLIC COMMENT
No comments have been received to date.

PROFFERED CONDITIONS
No proffers were proposed at the time of the preparation of staff’s background report,
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DRAFT MOTIONS
MOTION: REZONING
APPROVAL WITH PROFFERED CONDITION
I move that the Agricultural (A-1) rezoning request on the property of Joel F. Plante and Rietta L. Plante be
forwarded to the Board of Supervisors with a recommendation of approval.
This recommendation is made on the basis that the requirements of Section 25-581 of the Zoning Ordinance
have been satisfied, and that the proposal would serve the public necessity, convenience, general welfare
and is good zoning practice.

DENIAL
I move that the Agricultural (A-1) rezoning request on the property of Joel Plante and Rietta L. Plante be
forwarded to the Board of Supervisors with a recommendation of denial. Based upon Zoning Ordinance
Section 25-581 the following items have not been satisfied:
1. …
2. (list findings/reasons for denial)
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From:
To:
Cc:
Subject:
Date:
Attachments:

Bowman, Catherine
planning; DevServices
Smith, Ashley, P.E. (VDOT); Goad, Laura
VDOT - Rezoning and Special Exception Request Comments
Friday, January 7, 2022 2:27:17 PM
Route1191-Special_Exception_for_Car_Wash_Use_in_SC.pdf
Route672-Special_Exception_for_Animal_Kennel_on_Property_in_A-1.pdf
Route673-Rezoning_A-1_to_R-1_for_Single-family_Subdivision_Use.pdf
Route460-Special_Exception_for_Retail_Use_with_Outdoor_Storage_Containers_in_B-2.pdf
Route220-Rezoning_from_R-3_to_B-2_for_Commercial_Use.pdf

CAUTION: This email originated from outside your organization. Exercise caution when opening
attachments or clicking links, especially from unknown senders.
Please see the rezoning and special exception request comment letters due by January 18th and
February 14th attached to this email. VDOT did not review the rezoning request for Plante 50
Ottaway since Ottaway Road is privately maintained.
Thanks,
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Planning Commission
Board of Supervisors –

– February 14, 2022
February 22, 2022

TO:

Mr. Sam Foster, Chairman, Planning Commission
Members, Planning Commission

C:

Gary Larrowe, County Administrator
David Moorman, Deputy County Administrator
Nicole Pendleton, Director of Community Development
Mike Lockaby, County Attorney

FROM:

Drew Pearson, Sr. Planner

DATE:

February 14, 2022

SUBJECT:

The Botetourt County Board of Supervisors have authorized the Planning
Commission to hold a public hearing for the consideration of proposed text
amendments to Chapter 25 of the Botetourt County Zoning Ordinance,
Article VI. – Definitions,
Section
25-601
Definitions
to amend the existing
definition of Convenience store and add
a
definition
for the proposed
use Convenience store, highway; Article II. – District Regulations Generally, Division 11.
Business District B-2, Section 25-243. Uses permissible by special exception to add the
proposed use Convenience store, highway that would be permitted subject to
supplemental regulations; Article IV. – Supplemental Regulations, Division 1 –
Use Regulations, to add standards under which the proposed use Convenience
store, highway use would be permitted; and Article V – Supplemental Regulations,
Division 3. Parking, Section 25-473. – Required off-street parking and loading spaces
to amend the parking requirement for the use Convenience store and to add a
parking requirement for the proposed use Convenience store, highway.

Section 25-581,2 Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment of the Zoning Ordinance provides for
a landowner or resident of Botetourt County to file a petition for a change in the text of the
zoning ordinance. These requests are heard by the Board of Supervisors, who will either
adopt a resolution referring the petition to the Planning Commission or they will deny the
petition. Kourtney P. Hurd and Buchannan Crossing, LLC filed the petition requesting
consideration of the text amendments that would add a new land use category titled
“Convenience store, highway” in the Business (B-2) Use district as a special exception use
subject to supplemental regulations. The applicant included draft language for the text
amendments in their application. The Board of Supervisors have heard the applicant’s
request and are referring the petition to the Planning Commission for detailed review and
consideration.
The proposed convenience store, highway use is similar to the existing convenience store use
found in the zoning ordinance, with the primary difference being that the proposed use
would be able to provide high-flow commercial diesel dispensers for the fueling of

commercial vehicles and parking spaces designed to accommodate large vehicles and/or
commercial trucks, such as tractor-trailers.
A business can be comprised of multiple land uses. The last convenience store approved in
Botetourt County included a car wash. Both uses are allowed with a SEP in the B-2 use
district, therefore, two separate SEP’s were required and approved for the development.
The zoning ordinance contains definitions for the uses truck complex and truck stop. Truck
complex is defined as an intensive use that is best located in an industrial use district. Truck
stop is defined as a heavy commercial activity located in proximity to major highway routes
or interchanges but is not found as a permitted or SEP use in any zoning use district. Highflow commercial diesel dispensers for the fueling of commercial vehicles and parking
spaces that are designed for short-term and/or overnight tractor-trailer parking would be
allowed under either of these uses, however, truck complex is only allowed as a SEP use in
the Industrial M-1 and M-2 Use Districts and truck stop is not currently a permitted or SEP
use in any use district. Since convenience store is not allowed in within the M-1 or M-2 use
districts, the zoning ordinance does not contain a use district that would allow a business
that would be comprised of a convenience store and either a truck complex or truck stop.
The petition to amend the zoning ordinance to create the new use category, convenience
store, highway basically combines the uses convenience store and truck stop into the
proposed use that would be allowed by SEP in the B-2 use district subject to supplemental
regulations that are designed to limit where the use can be located throughout the B-2 use
district.
The proposed amendments are as follows:
CHAPTER 25 – ZONING, ARTICLE VI. – DEFINITIONS
Sec. 25-601. Definitions.
Convenience store: Any retail establishment offering for sale a relatively limited section of
prepackaged food products, household items, and other related goods, including fuel sales,
characterized by a rapid turnover of customers and high-traffic generation.Any establishment
primarily engaged in retailing a limited line of goods that generally includes, but is not limited to,
milk, bread, soda, snacks, alcohol, tobacco, and other related goods. Convenience stores may
also include self-service auto-fuel, (including gasoline, auto-diesel, flex-fuel and other petroleum
products), electric vehicle charging stations, car washes, and restaurants that provide indoor and
outdoor seating. Convenience stores are generally characterized by a rapid turnover of
customers, unlimited hours of operations and high-traffic generation, but shall not provide highflow commercial diesel dispensing or on-site parking spaces designed for commercial trucks and
buses.
Convenience store, highway: A convenience store that also engages in the retailing of highflow commercial diesel dispensing and may also provide on-site parking spaces designed for
commercial trucks and buses. (See Convenience store).
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CHAPTER 25 – ZONING, ARTICLE II. - DISTRICT REGULATIONS GENERALLY
Division 11. Business District B-2.
Sec. 25-243. Uses Permissible by special exception.
The following uses may be permitted by the board of supervisors as special exception uses,
subject to compliance with all other requirements of this chapter, and all other applicable
regulations.
(22) Convenience store, highway, subject to the standards of section 25-477.
CHAPTER 25 – ZONING, ARTICLE IV. SUPPLEMENTAL REGULATIONS
Division 1. - Use Regulations.
Sec. 447. Convenience store, highway.
Convenience store, highway as defined in Section 25-601 shall be subject to the following
restrictions:
(1)

The use shall be located completely within a (1/2) mile radius of an Interstate I-81
interchange, which shall be measured from the center point of the intersecting roadways.

(2)

The use shall be located on a lot with a minimum area of ten (10) acres zoned Business (B2).

(3)

High-flow commercial diesel dispensers and parking spaces designed for commercial
trucks and buses shall not be located within the front yard as determined by the
convenience store’s front line or point of the building.

Secs. 25-447448 – 25-460. Reserved.
Division 3. - Parking.
Sec. 25-473. - Required off-street parking and loading spaces.
Convenience store

1.0 per 200 sq. ft. GFA*, plus additional spaces as
required for other uses such as, but not limited
to, 1.0
per gasoline fuel
dispenser pumps,
electric vehicle charging station, car wash
washing unit, vacuum unit or tire air unit.

Convenience store, highway

1.0 per 200 sq. ft. GFA*, plus 1.0 additional
spaces as required for other uses such as, but
not limited to, 1.0 per fuel dispenser, high-flow
commercial diesel dispenser, electric vehicle
charging station, car wash washing unit,
vacuum unit or tire air unit.
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DRAFT MOTIONS
TEXT AMENDMENTS
APPROVAL
I move that the proposed text amendments, as stated in staff’s memo, be forwarded to the
Board of Supervisors with a recommendation of approval.
This recommendation is made on the basis that the requirements of Section 25-581.1 of the
Zoning Ordinance have been satisfied, and that the proposal would serve the public
necessity, convenience, general welfare, and is good zoning practice.
APPROVAL WITH RECOMMENDED CHANGES
I move that the proposed text amendments, as stated in staff’s memo, be forwarded to the Board
of Supervisors with a recommendation of approval with the following recommended changes:
1.
2.
This recommendation is made on the basis that the requirements of Section 25-581.1 of the Zoning
Ordinance have been satisfied, and that the proposal would serve the public necessity,
convenience, general welfare, and is good zoning practice.
DENIAL
I move that the proposed text amendments, as stated in staff’s memo, be forwarded to the Board
of Supervisors with a recommendation of denial. Based upon Zoning Ordinance Section 25-581.1
the following items have not been satisfied:
1.
2. (list findings/reasons for denial)
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BACKGROUND REPORT
Planning Commission – February 14, 2022
Board of Supervisors – February 22, 2022
Prepared by: J. McCoy

JOHN HIGGINBOTHAM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN MAP AMENDMENT
PROJECT SUMMARY
John and Michelle Higginbotham, representing Buttons Bluff, LLC, are requesting the Board
consider amendments to the Comprehensive Plan that would remove a 0.67-mile portion of
Buttons Bluff that is shown on Map 12 “Botetourt County Transportation Map” of the
Comprehensive Plan. The applicant stated that the purpose of this request is to allow them to
restrict access to their property (Tax Map ID 40-31). According to the applicant, those who use this
section of road often discard small and large trash items. The owners have also agreed to construct
a new turnaround that meets VDOT requirements at their own expense.
STAFF COMMENTS
If approved, the road section will be removed from Map 12. Approval will be followed by a hearing
by the Board of Supervisors to formally remove the section of road from the Comprehensive Plan.
Additionally, the Board will submit to the Salem VDOT Residency a resolution approving the
abandonment of the road section.
PLANNING COMMISSION ACTION
The Planning Commission is asked to make a recommendation to approve or deny the request to
amend Map 12 of the Botetourt County Transportation Map in the Botetourt County
Comprehensive Plan removing the road section.
LEGAL ADVERTISEMENT
Buchanan Magisterial District: Buttons Bluff LLC in accordance with Section 25-581.4.
Comprehensive Plan Amendment and Review of the Botetourt County Zoning Ordinance, request
to remove an approximate 0.75+/- mile portion of Buttons Bluff (State Route 690) from Map 12 of
the Botetourt County Transportation Map for the purpose of seeking to abandon the road between
the railroad and the dead end of the road as maintained by VDOT, upon a 259.87-acre parcel in
Eagle Rock, VA and identified on the Real Property Identification Maps of Botetourt County as
Section 40, Parcel 31.
EXISTING CONDITIONS AND BACKGROUND
Buttons Bluff is a single lane, graveled public road. It is accessible only by Trebark Road (Route
625), also a graveled public road. The section of road being abandoned is 1.44 miles northwest of
Trebark Road.
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The section of Buttons Bluff that is proposed for abandonment is northwest of a C&O railroad
easement. The railroad does not cross the road, but instead passes through a tunnel underneath
the property. Lovers Leap, a popular scenic point in the County, is located near the proposed
abandonment.
The applicant is working with VDOT to construct a turnaround to provide vehicles a method to
travel back to Trebark Road. The applicant has indicated that they will pay for this improvement.
ADJACENT AND SURROUNDING USES/ZONING
Adjacent property uses range from a mix single-family residential and wooded areas. The property
accessed by the proposed abandoned portion of Buttons Bluff is surrounded on three sides by the
James River and is only accessible via Buttons Bluff Rd.
Zoning

Land Use

North Agricultural, A-1

Vacant and residential

South Agricultural, A-1

Vacant

East

Agricultural, A-1

Vacant

West

Agricultural, A-1

Vacant

2010 COMPREHENSIVE PLAN
This right of way is identified as part of the county’s road network in the Comprehensive Plan. In
order for the County to consider an ordinance to formally abandon any claim to the right-of-way,
the Comprehensive Plan map must be amended.
TRAFFIC
VDOT estimates the average daily traffic count to be 30 trips along Buttons Bluff. Trebark Road,
which provides access to Buttons Bluff, is estimated to have fewer than 100 trips per day.
FIRE AND RESCUE
The Buchanan Fire Department and Rescue Squad is located 8.4 miles from the subject property.
PUBLIC COMMENT
County staff received a comment from a neighbor expressing concern with the proposed
abandonment, unless a means to turn around is provided. County staff spoke with the neighbor
and discussed the proposed turnaround. The concerned neighbor was satisfied with the proposed
turnaround and has no additional concerns with the abandonment.
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DRAFT MOTIONS
APPROVAL
I move to approve the request to remove a 0.67-mile portion of Buttons Bluff from Map 12 of the
Botetourt County Transportation Base Map based on Section 25-581.4. Comprehensive Plan
Amendment and Review of the Botetourt County Zoning Ordinance, be forwarded to the Board of
Supervisors with a recommendation of approval
This recommendation is made on the basis that the requirements of Section 25-581.4 of the Zoning
Ordinance have been satisfied, and that the proposal would serve the public necessity,
convenience, general welfare and is good zoning practice.

DENIAL
I move that the request to remove a 0.67-mile portion of Buttons Bluff from Map 12 of the Botetourt
County Transportation Base Map to abandon the right-of-way based on Section 25-581.4.
Comprehensive Plan Amendment and Review of the Botetourt County Zoning Ordinance, be
forwarded to the Board of Supervisors with a recommendation of denial. The applicants have not
satisfactorily demonstrated that individual property owners in the vicinity will not be irreparably
damaged by the vacation of the right of way and that no inconvenience will result to such property
owners or to the public by permanently vacating the state maintenance of the right of way.
Therefore, the proposed vacation presents adverse effects upon the community or other
properties in the vicinity of the proposed action and the proposal does not serve the public
necessity, convenience, and general welfare.

1.
2. (list findings/reasons for denial)
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1/18/22, 10:18 AM

Mail - McCoy, Jonathan - Outlook

Fw: Proposal to vacate .75 miles of Route 690.
Pendleton, Nicole <npendleton@BOTETOURTVA.GOV>
Tue 1/18/2022 9:07 AM
To: McCoy, Jonathan <jmccoy@BOTETOURTVA.GOV>

Try this one!

From: Larrowe, Gary <glarrowe@BOTETOURTVA.GOV>
Sent: Sunday, January 16, 2022 6:44 PM
To: Scothorn, Mac <mscothorn@BOTETOURTVA.GOV>; Bailey, Richard <rbailey@BOTETOURTVA.GOV>; Billy
Martin <bibec1@juno.com>; Clinton, Steve <sclinton@BOTETOURTVA.GOV>; White, Amy
<awhite@BOTETOURTVA.GOV>
Subject: Fwd: Proposal to vacate .75 miles of Route 690.

Friends,
Just passing this along.
Thanks,
Gary
Gary Larrowe
County Administrator
Botetourt County, VA
540-928-2006
GLarrowe@BotetourtVA.gov
"The World Belongs to those who show up"
Begin forwarded message:
From: John Williamson <john.b.williamson.iii@hushmail.com>
Date: January 16, 2022 at 6:41:45 PM EST
To: "Moorman, David" <dmoorman@botetourtva.gov>
Cc: "Larrowe, Gary" <glarrowe@botetourtva.gov>, "White, Amy"
<awhite@botetourtva.gov>
https://outlook.office365.com/mail/inbox/id/AAQkAGY4MWYxY2U3LWYxMjUtNDhhZi05NmZkLTY4NmFlOTRhYmNlYwAQAGu%2F2H5Oq2NEsECtX…
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1/18/22, 10:18 AM

Mail - McCoy, Jonathan - Outlook

Subject: Proposal to vacate .75 miles of Route 690.
<center><span style="background-color: #FFFF00">CAUTION: This email originated from
outside your organization. Exercise caution when opening attachments or clicking links,
especially from unknown senders.</span></center>
Greetings David.
Thank you for sending the notice of public hearing on the proposal to vacate .75 miles of
Route 690.
We own the last private property on the right going in on Route 690 before reaching the
point of proposed vacation (separated by the C&O railway). As you may know Route 690
goes over the historic Mason Tunnel of the Kanawha Canal System at this point. Now
owned and used by the railroad of course. The map of the proposed vacation appears to
indicate the vacation starts at the far edge of railroad right of way. This seems logical on
its face, but not appropriate for a couple of reasons.
The road is a single country lane and there is no room to turn around at this point and the
area is atop a ridge with steep drop offs to both sides. To accommodate a reasonable
“rural culdesac” the road should continue past the edge of railroad right of way for about
a hundred yards to where there is enough flat area for a functional turn around. While
there is not very much traffic on this section of Route 690 it still must accommodate VDOT
trucks, the occasional UPS Truck and the tourists that come to “lovers leap” to view the
river trestle, OxBow Farm and the majestic distant mountains. The large rock outcrop that
facilitates this “overlook” is directly above the up river outlet of Mason Tunnel. I doubt
that the railroad likes the fact that people park along Route 690 in the railroad right of
way and clime the rocks to view the trestle and beyond, but it has been happening for
generations and people come from far and wide to visit it. To not provide a means for
those people to safely turn around will lead to vehicular and driver interaction troubles.
Not every “tourist” is a good driver and occasionally one or two are not fully sober.
Lastly, please ask VDOT to put up a dead end or road ends in 1.5 miles sign (after
vacation). There used to be one, but I think a tourist may have borrowed it a few years
ago.
Thanks for considering our comments and safety concerns regarding the beginning spot
of vacation. Our comments are not intended to oppose the vacation, only to encourage
full safe and neighborly use of the public right of way.
John and Marilee Williamson.

Sent from my iPhone

https://outlook.office365.com/mail/inbox/id/AAQkAGY4MWYxY2U3LWYxMjUtNDhhZi05NmZkLTY4NmFlOTRhYmNlYwAQAGu%2F2H5Oq2NEsECtX…
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BYLAWS OF THE
BOTETOURT COUNTY
PLANNING COMMISSION
December 14, 2020 February 14, 2022

I. OBJECTIVES
The objectives of the Planning Commission shall be as established by §15.2-2200
of the Code of Virginia, in force on the date hereof, and as may from time to time be
lawfully amended.
II. MEMBERS

The Planning Commission shall consist of five voting members, appointed by the
Board of Supervisors. There shall be one voting member from each of the County's five
magisterial districts. Each shall be qualified by knowledge and experience to make
decisions on questions of community growth and development. At least three of the
voting members shall be owners of real property in the county. The Board of Supervisors
may require each member of the commission to take an oath of office.
There shall be one ex officio, non-voting member of the Commission, who shall
be a member of and appointed by the Board of Supervisors. The voting members shall
serve initial terms so that at least one term expires annually. After this sequence is
established, terms shall be for four years. Vacancies shall be filled by appointment for
the unexpired term only. Members may be removed for malfeasance in office.
The Board of Supervisors may provide for compensation to commission members
for their services, reimbursement for actual expenses incurred, or both.

III. CHAIRPERSON AND VICE CHAIRPERSON

A Chairperson and Vice Chairperson of the Commission shall be elected by the
Commission annually from the voting members. The Chairperson of the Planning
Commission shall preside at all meetings of the Commission. In the event of the absence or
disability of the Chairperson, the Vice-Chairperson shall preside. In the event of the
absence or disability of both the Chairperson and Vice-Chairperson, the remaining members
of the Commission shall elect by a majority vote a temporary Chairperson who shall preside at the
meeting for which they are elected.

The Chairperson of the Planning Commission shall perform such other duties as are
designated by statute or by the bylaws of this Commission. In event of the absence or disability of
the Chairperson, the Vice-Chairperson shall, to the extent permitted by statute, perform the
duties of the Chairperson.

IV. SECRETARY

The County's Zoning Administrator shall serve as Secretary of the Planning
Commission. The Secretary shall keep the minutes, books and records of the
Commission.
V. DUTIES
The duties of the Planning Commission shall be as established by law, or as
lawfully delegated by the Board of Supervisors.
VI. QUORUM

A majority of the voting members of the Planning Commission shall constitute a
quorum. Except when otherwise required by statute, or duly adopted rule of procedure,

the vote of a majority of those present shall prevail.

VII. AGENDA
The Secretary shall prepare and make available to each member of the
Commission a detailed agenda at least one (1) day prior to each regular meeting of the
Commission. The agenda may be departed from with the consent of the Chairperson
or by a majority vote of the members present.
It shall be the responsibility of each member to notify the Secretary of any matter
which such member wishes included on the agenda. Any matter not disposed of at a
meeting shall be included on the agenda of the next regular meeting.
For any special meeting, the business to be discussed shall be stated in the call for
such meeting. No other business shall be discussed or acted upon over the objection of any
member present.
VIII. HEARINGS
Any advertised public hearing shall be considered a special order of business at
the time set for such hearing and shall supplant any matter on the agenda except the
approval of the minutes.
When persons desire to be heard upon matters not on the agenda, the consent of the
Chairperson or a majority of the Members present shall be required. Generally, at a hearing,
no person shall be allowed to speak more than three (3) minutes nor more than once
upon any particular question. Cumulative or repetitive testimony shall not be
permitted on any matter, and persons of the same position as a previous speaker shall
state their names and the position with which they agree.

Agenda items and discussion topics will general generally be presented by
staff. For matters in which a third party is requesting an action by the Planning
Commission, the applicant shall normally be granted fifteen (15) minutes to present
their request, which will be followed by hearing comments from interested persons.
The Chairperson may, in his/her discretion, deviate from this rule. When all
public testimony has concluded, the Planning Commission shall consider and
discuss the matter without interruption from the audience.
IX. RULES OF ORDER

The deliberations of the Planning Commission, unless otherwise provided by statute
or these bylaws, shall be governed by "A Handbook of Parliamentary
Procedure" (Publication. 305-772, Virginia Cooperative Extension Service), with the
exception that the Chairperson may make a motion and will vote on any issue, and no
second is required on motions. If the foregoing is inapplicable, then Robert's Rules of
Order shall govern.
Appeal may be taken by any member from a ruling of the Chair. A
majority vote of those members present shall determine any appeal. Any motion
to close debate shall require approval by two-thirds (2/3) vote of those members
present.
X. REGULAR MEETINGS

The regular meetings of the Planning Commission shall be held on the second Monday
of each month, beginning at 6:00 p.m. in the Auditorium of the Greenfield Education &
Training Center Botetourt County Administration Center at 57 South Center Drive, Daleville,
Virginia, provided, that when the second Monday of any month falls upon a legal holiday such
regular meeting in such month shall be held on the next following business day; and provided
further, that the Planning Commission may, by resolution at any meeting,

provide that the next following regular meeting shall be held at a different time or place,
and it shall then be the duty of the Secretary to give timely notice thereof to all members
and to inform the news media.
XI. SPECIAL MEETINGS

Special meetings of the Commission may be called by the Chairperson or by
two members upon written request to the Secretary. The Secretary shall mail to all members,
at least five days in advance of a special meeting, a written notice fixing the time and place of
the meeting and the purpose thereof.
Written notice of a special meeting is not required if the time of the special
meeting has been fixed at a regular meeting, or if all members are present at the special
meeting or file a written waiver of notice.
XII.

ELECTRONIC MEETINGS

Provided that a quorum is physically present at one place that is open to the public and
arrangements have been made for all persons to be able to hear one another speak, the Board may
allow members to participate in meetings electronically under the provisions of this section.
On or before the day of a meeting, a member of the Board must notify the Chair that:
a. Such member is unable to attend the meeting due to a temporary or permanent disability or
other medical condition that prevents the member's physical attendance; or
b. Such member is unable to attend the meeting due to a personal matter and identifies with
specificity the nature of the personal matter. Participation by a member pursuant to this
subdivision is limited each calendar year to two meetings.
The Secretary shall record in its minutes the remote location from which the member
participated and the reason why the electronic participation was authorized.

The Board may meet by electronic communication means without a quorum physically
assembled at one location when the Governor has declared a state of emergency, provided that (i) the

catastrophic nature of the declared emergency makes it impracticable or unsafe to assemble a quorum
in a single location and (ii) the purpose of the meeting is to address the emergency. In such
circumstance, the Board shall:
a. Give public notice using the best available method given the nature of the emergency, which
notice shall be given contemporaneously with the notice provided to members of the public
body conducting the meeting;
b. Make arrangements for public access to such meeting; and
c. Otherwise comply with the provisions of this section.
The nature of the emergency, the fact that the meeting was held by electronic
communication means, and the type of electronic communication means by which the meeting
was held shall be stated in the minutes.
XIII. AMENDMENTS

These bylaws may be amended by a majority vote of the Commission at any time
during the year of their adoption.
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TO:

Mr. Sam Foster, Chairman, Planning Commission
Members, Planning Commission

C:

Gary Larrowe, County Administrator
David Moorman, Deputy County Administrator
Mike Lockaby, County Attorney

FROM:

Jon McCoy, CZO

THRU:

Nicole Pendleton, Director of Community Development

DATE:

February 14, 2021

SUBJECT:

Comprehensive Plan Update Worksession #2

February 2022

Overview
The Department of Community Development is working to update the County’s Comprehensive Plan.
The Comprehensive Plan is the guiding document for the County and has long-reaching land use and
policy implications.
Virginia Code §15.2-2223 directs local governments to adopt a comprehensive plan, prepared and
recommended by the local Planning Commission. Virginia Code further directs the Planning
Commission to review the Plan once every five years. The last full update to the Comprehensive Plan
was conducted in 2010. While some chapters have since been updated, a full update to the Plan is
necessary to ensure the continued success of Botetourt County.
Envision Botetourt 2040 is Botetourt County’s newest Comprehensive Plan and will be driven by the
citizens, drafted by the Department of Community Development, and directed by the Planning
Commission. The goal is to produce a Plan that will serve the County and citizens well through the year
2040.
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Agenda
The February 14 meeting will focus on reviewing the update process and progress to date. The
following agenda is provided to outline the discussion.
1.

Project Update

2. Consultant Work
3. Upcoming Public Outreach
4. Chapters 3. 4, and 5
5. Next Steps

Project Update
The Comprehensive Plan update process kicked off in 2019. Staff changeover and the COVID-19
pandemic was a barrier to progress. County staff have reviewed and updated background data and
previous public outreach. Additional progress has been made on draft chapters discussed at the
November meeting.
Since November, planning staff have contracted with Renaissance Studios to provide additional
mapping and outreach support. Additionally, Chapters 3 – Arts, Culture and History; 4 – Natural
Environment; and 5 – Local Economy have been will be presented during this worksession.

Consultant Work
The county has engaged Renaissance Planning to provide mapping and public outreach support
through interactive web-based mapping and other innovative survey methods. Renaissance has been
a partner to the county on previous comp plans and the Gateway Crossing Area Plan, adopted in 2017.
Renaissance is providing mapping support to update several of the maps found in the 2010
Comprehensive Plan. They will provide a template to staff as well to make updates, tweaks, or new
maps with the same visual appearance.
Renaissance is also developing a virtual public engagement tool to gather more input as a supplement
to the input gathered in 2019 that will provide for the county to gauge citizen input on future land use,
infrastructure, and community facilities. This tool, and information about the comprehensive plan and
the update process, will be a dedicated site accessible from the County’s new website.

Upcoming Public Outreach
Renaissance Planning is working with staff to develop an online engagement tool. This tool will allow
citizens to identify locations for growth, development, preservation, trails, greenways, community
facilities, and infrastructure by dropping pins and leaving comments on a map of Botetourt County. This
tool is under development and is intended to go live in late March. The public input will be incorporated
into the plan as we work towards completion. If necessary, staff will revisit chapters that may be
updated pending additional public comment.

Chapters 3, 4, and 5
Chapters 3, 4, and 5 are new topic areas to the County’s Comprehensive Plan. Each chapter provides
an overview of the topic area, using existing conditions, public input, and other studies and plans.
Additionally, each chapter contains a needs assessment, detailing the community needs as we plan for
the future. Finally, each chapter provides a matrix identifying objectives and strategies to meet the
community needs. Each objective and strategy find justification in the body of the chapter itself. The
2|Page
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Chapter 3 – Arts, Culture, and History
•
•
•
•
•

Provides an overview of the County’s history, using resources provided by the County’s library.
Includes a historic timeline of some significant events.
Lists registered historic places and the date in which the sites were added.
Identifies arts and cultural organizations and locations in the County.
Discusses relevant partnerships and initiatives the County has to offer.

Chapter 4 – Natural Environment
•
•

•
•
•

Pulls in some information from the 2010 Comprehensive Plan.
Discusses:
o Geography
o Topography
o Geology & Soils
o Land Cover
o Water Resources
o Stormwater
o Protected Lands & Species
Includes community engagement and needs assessment.
Identifies potential government and non-government partners.
Introduces some topics that will be covered more robustly in other chapters, such as Land Use
and Community Services and Facilities

Chapter 5 – Local Economy
•
•
•
•
•

New chapter to the comprehensive plan.
Uses economic data provided by the Virginia Economic Commission and Census Bureau to
discuss existing conditions and community needs.
Includes details of employers, total employment, education, and location.
Identifies potential new business and industrial park sites
Provides objectives and strategies to address needs, including development of workforce
housing, methods to encourage entrepreneurship, and collaboration with partner
organizations.

Next Steps
Staff will work to incorporate feedback from this meeting and begin drafting the next chapters. Staff
will return in April to discuss and receive feedback on Land Use, Housing, and Transportation.

3|Page

Envision Botetourt 2040
Comprehensive Plan Update

February 2022

Chapter 3 – Arts, Culture, and History
Goal

Support the development of arts and culture assets in the
County while preserving and promoting Botetourt’s rich
historical character.

Introduction

Botetourt County has a rich heritage of arts, culture, and
history that stretches to the pre-Revolutionary War era and
earlier. While Botetourt’s written history begins with
European settlers in the area, evidence of human habitation
of the area can be dated to as early as 3,000 B.C.E.
Archaeological sites such as the Bessemer and Gala sites
provide evidence that human beings called Botetourt home
for millennia prior to colonization by European settlers. This
long-standing history gives Botetourt a great gift, allowing
visitors and residents of the county to connect to previous
generations in ways not shared by every community.
The residents of Botetourt County are passionate about the
historical and cultural assets found here. The recent 250-year
anniversary of the County, (officially in 2020, but celebrated
in 2021, due to the COVID-19 pandemic), has brought a
renewed interest in the County’s historic assets. Citizens seek
to connect with their history and to preserve it for future
generations. Preservation of historical and cultural assets
does not mean that citizens and visitors cannot appreciate
and interact with them. Preservation of historic assets can be
managed while also utilizing those assets for educational
and enrichment purposes. It is critical that these assets be
preserved for the enrichment of all Botetourt citizens, both
current and future.

DID YOU KNOW?
Heritage tourism is a big
economic driver for
Virginia. Heritage
tourism, as defined by
the National Trust for
Historic Preservation, is
“traveling to experience
the places and activities
that authentically
represent the stories and
people of the past and
present.” An economic
impact study released in
2017 by Preservation
Virginia found that
heritage tourists spend
an astounding $7.7
billion dollars in Virginia
annually. Tapping into
that market can be an
economic boon for
Botetourt County, being
steeped in history that
predates the United
States itself.

Planning Context
History
Botetourt County was founded in 1770. The County was formed
from Augusta County and is named after the former governor,
Norborne Berkeley, baron de Botetourt, who was appointed by
King George III as the royal governor of Virginia in 1768. The
original jurisdiction of Botetourt County stretched across
multiple states and territories, from its current boundary to the
Mississippi River, encompassing West Virginia, Kentucky, Ohio,
Indiana, and part of Illinois. Figure 1 below details some
Figure 1 Norborne Berkeley (Source:
important historical events in the County.
New York Public Library Digital
Collections)

Chapter 3 – Arts, Culture, and History
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Figure 2 Timeline of Botetourt History

Chapter 3 – Arts, Culture, and History
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Botetourt’s lasting historical legacy continues to thrive today and nowhere is it more evident
than in the many historic properties found in the County. Botetourt has 31 properties listed on
either the Virginia Landmarks Register (VLR) or the National Register of Historic Places
(NRHP). Table 3.1 provides the names of the sites, along with the date the site was listed on
each register. While being listed on the VLR and the NRHP is a great honor and recognition
of the site’s historical significance, being listed does not guarantee the protection of the site
or the structures found there. These sites are critical to the historic legacy of the County and
should be protected for future generations to enjoy.
Number
1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31

Property Name
Fincastle Historic District
Callie Furnace
Santillane
Phoenix Bridge
Wilson Warehouse
Looney Mill Creek Site
Prospect Hill
Nininger's Mill
Breckinridge Mill
Roaring Run Furnace
Bessemer Archaeological Site
Wiloma
Wheatland Manor
Annandale
Varney's Falls Dam and Lock
Anderson House
Buchanan Historic District
Bowyer-Holladay House
Catawba Furnace
Hawthorne Hall
Thomas D. Kinzie House
Greyledge
Lauderdale
Gala Archaeological Site
Greenfield
Bryan McDonald, Jr. House
George Washington Rader House
Blue Ridge Hall
Reynolds Property
Buchanan Theatre
Glencoe

VLR Date Listed
05-13-1969
07-17-1973
01-15-1974
02-18-1975
07-19-1977
04-19-1977
09-18-1979
05-20-1980
05-20-1980
06-15-1976
09-16-1982
10-18-1983
10-08-1991
12-09-1992
08-18-1993
09-17-1997
09-14-1998
03-17-1999
03-17-1999
12-01-1999
06-13-2001
09-12-2001
09-05-2007
12-17-2009
06-17-2010
06-16-2011
06-19-2014
09-15-2016
09-15-2016
12-13-2018
12-10-2020

NRHP Date Listed
11-12-1969
01-21-1974
07-24-1974
06-10-1975
01-26-1978
08-03-1978
12-28-1979
07-30-1980
07-30-1980
03-21-1983
12-15-1984
11-22-1985
02-05-1992
02-11-1993
10-14-1993
02-25-1999
01-27-1999
06-10-1999
Pending
01-28-2000
04-26-2002
02-05-2002
10-31-2007
03-17-2010
06-28-2011
08-24-2011
08-25-2014
11-22-2016
11-22-2016
04-15-2019
Pending

Source: Virginia Department of Historic Resources
Often, private property owners are responsible for maintaining and upkeeping historical
assets found on the property. While there is little the County can do to ensure private historic
properties owned by citizens are kept in pristine condition, connecting property owners to
incentives, grants, and other funding sources to preserve historic property can be an effective
means to ensuring their preservation.
Chapter 3 – Arts, Culture, and History
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Arts and Culture
While well known for its wealth of history in the County, Botetourt has a strong cultural
standing as an arts community. Community theatrical productions, art studios, live music
venues, and craft workspaces are abundant across the County and reflect a rich diversity in
culture. The following list provides a snapshot of the available arts and culture-related assets
in the community and is not intended to be comprehensive.
•

Attic Productions
A live theatrical performance venue that presents entertainment for families. Located
just outside of the Town of Fincastle, Attic Productions offers a seating capacity of 284
in their auditorium and puts on several productions a season

•

Buchanan Theatre
Botetourt County’s only movie theater is located in the Town of Buchanan. Operated
by a 501(c)(3) nonprofit and originally built in 1917, Buchanan Theater is on the National
Register of Historic Places since 2019.

•

Daleville Town Center Performance Pavilion
The Daleville Town Center Performance Pavilion is a permanent outdoor covered
stage and outdoor musical venue located at the Town Center. The Pavilion hosts live
music typically on weekends throughout the year and the Botetourt Farmer’s Market
on Saturdays between May-October.

•

Open Studios Botetourt
A unique program, Open Studios Botetourt is a self-guided driving tour of artists’
studios in Botetourt. Visitors receive a passport card to stamp at each studio, allowing
them to track their visits. The 2021 iteration of the program featured 15 artists in seven
locations from Daleville to Fincastle.

Arts and cultural events are the backbone of the community. Public participation in these
events cultivate cultural appreciation, instill pride in the county, promote quality of life and
property values, and attract new people and ideas to Botetourt. Cultural events invigorate the
local community and create a reason to be in Botetourt, not just live here.
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The location of these historical
and cultural resources detailed
here in this chapter are identified
on map 3.1 below. Several of the
historical and cultural assets are
located in the three towns in the
county. While the towns are
guided
by
their
own
comprehensive
plans,
ordinances, and policies, it is
important that the county and
towns work together to preserve
historic and cultural assets and
market them for the appreciation
of the community and travelers
to the area.
[Insert Map 3.1 – Cultural Assets]

Community
Engagement

Community
engagement
conducted in 2019 revealed a
desire to connect with historical
resources, marketing these sites
and locations for tourism while
also ensuring their continued
preservation. Cultural assets Figure 3 Antique vehicles along a Buchanan street
were of concern as well; one
survey respondent remarked that the “lack of social venue like theater[s], craft brewer[ies],
nice restaurants” is one of the greatest challenges facing the community.

Partnerships & Initiatives

Identifying appropriate and relevant partnerships and initiatives is critical to support the
preservation of historic assets and the growth of cultural programs in Botetourt.

Local
Historical Societies
There are several historical societies working to preserve and share the County’s history. The
Botetourt County Historical Society and Museum preserves local history in the Botetourt
County Historical Society Museum found on Main Street in Fincastle. Historic Fincastle, Inc.
works to promote the history of the Town of Fincastle, offering a self-guided tour of historic
structures in the Town, as well as an online repository of documents from the 1770s to present
day.
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Library Branches & Circuit Courthouse
Historical resources abound at the local libraries and the County Circuit Courthouse. The
Fincastle Branch library features a genealogy room where patrons can conduct research into
their family lineage. The Eagle Rock Branch library contains a local history room to catalog
resources and provide opportunities to research Botetourt’s history. The County Circuit
Courthouse retains records of marriage certificates, land records, court records, and probate
records dating to 1770 available to review.
2017 Greenfield Preservation Area Master Plan
Botetourt’s commitment to preserving
and honoring our historical legacy is no
more evident than in the 2017
Greenfield Preservation Area Master
Plan. This plan came about after the
relocation of historical structures at
Greenfield to develop the property.
The plan is a roadmap to creating an
interpretive
historical
site
that
continues to preserve and promote the
historic nature of the site.

State and Federal

“The purpose of this master plan is to provide an
effective and feasible strategy for the preservation
and interpretation of the historic resources in the
Greenfield Preservation Area so that county residents
and visitors can understand and appreciate the
significant role Colonel William Preston and
Botetourt County played in the settlement of
Southwest Virginia and beyond.”
-2017 Greenfield Preservation Area Master Plan

VLR and NRHP
Table 3.1 identifies the 31 sites in Botetourt found in the VLR and NRHP. These programs are
two state and federal initiatives intended to identify the historic significance of places and
structures. The VLR was established in 1965, while the NRHP was established one year later.
While the lists do not protect or preserve listed sites, owners of the sites may qualify for tax
rehabilitation credits and the Department of Historic Resources’ easement program.
Library of Virginia
The Library of Virginia, founded in 1823, is a state agency dedicated to the preservation of
historical documents. It is “the most comprehensive resource in the world for the study of
Virginia history, culture, and government” and has been the repository of local government
records since 1975. The Library is a source of local history and an asset to preserve
documents related to Botetourt’s history.
Virginia Humanities
Virginia Humanities is one of 56 humanities councils
created by Congress and supported by the National
Endowment for the Humanities. The purpose of
Virginia Humanities is to connect Virginians with
history and culture and to that end, the organization
offers grants to support research, interpretive
performances, digital media projects, films, exhibits,
and planning efforts, among other items.
Chapter 3 – Arts, Culture, and History
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Needs Assessment

Botetourt County is a locality steeped in history and cultural assets, but work is needed to
unlock their full potential Heritage tourism is a source of income and tax revenue for the
County. While the assets clearly exist, better development and marketing of these assets as
tourism destinations is a need. Improved marketing and development of existing historical
sites will support economic growth and encourage tourism in Botetourt. Botetourt County
must work with Visit Virginia’s Blue Ridge to develop these sites for tourism purposes.
Fostering and growing the arts community in Botetourt will create a sense of place for
residents, strengthening the community and inducing pride in the county. A missing link in
the development of arts in the county is a unifying body linking resources, programs, and
events in a single organization. This group could promote existing arts and culture events
while also serving as a fundraising organization led by citizens with local government
representation.
An additional piece to developing arts and culture programs in the community is a physical
location in which to do so. Currently, there are few meeting spaces to host group events.
Identifying a location and securing funding for such a space is a critical need not only for arts
and cultural purposes, but for other events as well.
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Objectives and Strategies
Goal: Support the development of arts and culture assets in the County while
preserving and promoting Botetourt’s rich historical character.
Objective 1: Ensure the preservation of historic and cultural assets in the County.
Strategies
Responsibility
Cost to Pursue
Timeframe
Identify and maintain an inventory of
Planning and
$
Ongoing
historic sites and structures.
Zoning
Work with community organizations
to locate and preserve historical
County Staff
$
Short term
sites and buildings.
Connect appropriate organizations
County Staff,
to funding sources to preserve
$
Ongoing
Local Orgs
historic structures.
Pursue Certified Local Government
County
status through the National Park
Administration,
$$
Mid term
Service.
Parks & Rec
Establish local tax incentives, loan
County
funds, and/or grant funding pool to
Administration,
$$$
Long term
promote historic preservation in the
Board of
county.
Supervisors
Promote state and federal historic
tax credit programs for the
County Staff
$
Ongoing
rehabilitation of historic properties.
Objective 2: Market historic and cultural sites as community assets, encouraging
residents and travelers to interact with these sources.
Strategies
Responsibility
Cost to Pursue
Timeframe
Continue to implement the 2017
County Staff,
$$
Ongoing
Greenfield Preservation Master Plan
Local Orgs
Develop an arts master planning
County Staff,
document through coordination with Local Orgs, State
$$
Midterm
existing cultural organizations.
Partners
Engage with regional bodies to
County Staff, Visit
develop a regional historic “voice”
Long term
Virginia’s Blue
$$
that promotes travel to Botetourt
Ridge
and the towns.
Continue to work with local artists,
musicians, craftsmen, and writers to
County Staff
$
Ongoing
promote events and programs.
Work to implement a
County Staff,
comprehensive wayfinding plan
Regional Orgs,
$$$
Long term
directing travelers to important
State Partners
historic and cultural sites.
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Chapter 4 – Natural Environment
Goal

Secure and preserve a natural environment that supports a high quality of life for all Botetourt
citizens, promotes opportunities for outdoor recreation, and creates harmony with future
development.

Introduction

Botetourt County is blessed with extensive natural beauty, from the Blue Ridge and
Appalachian Mountain cresting through the county, to the flowing waters of the James River
as it makes it way to the coast. The James River itself originates in the County, not far from
Iron Gate on the border with Alleghany County. Portions of two national forests are protected
in Botetourt County, the George Washington National Forest, and the Jefferson National
Forest. The Appalachian Trail, which stretches from Georgia to Maine, passes through
Botetourt, giving travelers an exquisite view of the valley and County’s beauty. The Blue Ridge
Parkway also meanders through the county, offering breathtaking views and an escape to
nature.
It is this immense beauty that has called so many to settle in Botetourt, where many families
have lived for generations. The County has grown over time, from just over 10,500 residents
in the first U.S. Decennial Census in 1790 to over 33,000 today. With growth comes change,
and it is ever more important to manage growth to preserve Botetourt’s existing natural
environment.

Planning Context
Geography
Botetourt County contains 546 square miles of territory, with less than 1 percent of that being
surface water. Defined by mountains and valleys, the County has significant suburban
development in the south that quickly gives way to more rural agricultural and forestall land
in the north. A more comprehensive breakdown of the land cover of the county can be seen
in Table 4.1.

Topography
A locality’s topography can be a great barrier to development. Certainly, Botetourt’s range of
elevations, from 900 feet above sea level at the banks of the James, to over 4,000 feet at the
peaks of mountain ranges stretching through the county, can prove challenging to some
types of developments. Additionally, the mountains and James River has created isolated
pockets of communities like Eagle Rock and Iron Gate to the north. These geographical
challenges limit the ability to develop mid-to-large scale commercial and industrial sites in
sections of the county, due to the difficulty and associated cost in installing infrastructure.
A 1977 report conducted by RVARC detailed the general topography of the County. This
report, though dated, still accurately portrays the topographical landscape of Botetourt. The
report presented four slope classifications and the constraints associated with each. This
information has been mapped in Figure 4.1. – Slopes.
[Insert Figure 4.1 – Slopes]
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Classification 1 -- level land (0-8 percent slope): this land is flat to moderate and capable of
many types of development. Areas in this classification include central Botetourt (north to
Fincastle), lands along the James River, Craig Creek, and the land surrounding Cloverdale and
Daleville.
Classification 2 -- rolling land (8-15 percent slope): this land can be developed for residential
use with larger lots. Development of intensive residential, commercial and public uses would
require different types of foundations than land in Classification 1. Classification 2 lands are
well suited for pastures and certain other agricultural uses. Areas in this classification are
scattered throughout the County.

Figure 1: A typical Botetourt vista

Classification 3 -- hilly land (15-25 percent slope): the lands in this classification may be
suitable for residential uses provided lot size and careful site planning is used to fit the
development to the topography. This slope classification limits intensive development, as
well as placement of public facilities. Agricultural activities would be limited to passive
activities, such as pastureland. Areas in this classification include lands along the foothills of
mountains.
Classification 4 -- steep slopes (25 percent slope and greater): this land is generally
considered unsuitable for any type of intensive development or cultivation. The best use of
this land is for limited outdoor recreation, wildlife management, and watershed maintenance.
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Areas in this classification include lands adjacent to the Blue Ridge Parkway; lands bordering
Craig and Alleghany Counties; and the land northeast of Eagle Rock to the Rockbridge County
border and north of Buchanan.
Any efforts to guide future development to locations that are topographically suitable must
be done with an understanding of the significant environmental benefits that will accrue. Such
efforts must also respect and address legitimate property right interests. A programmatic
approach based upon both public regulation and private incentives has the potential to be an
effective strategy to ensure both appropriate development locations and appropriate
development techniques. It is also important to remember programs that discourage or limit
development on steep slopes will likely redirect development demand and will most likely
channel development to the south-central portion of the County where land is in high
demand based upon its topography, access and presence of utility services.

Geology and Soils
Subsurface geology, soil characteristics, and topography are three highly interrelated factors
that can influence the development potential of property. Igneous, metamorphic, and
sedimentary rocks that range from Mississippian to Precambrian in age underlie Botetourt
County. Along the Blue Ridge, granite, granodiorite, diorite, unakite, quartzite, and phyllite are
found. Sedimentary shale, limestone, and dolomite are dominant in the valleys. The
Appalachian Mountains are comprised of sedimentary sandstone and shales. The
characteristics of limestone yield good wells and free flowing springs for many County
property owners; however, the valley regions of the County are likewise susceptible to
groundwater pollution. Limestone geology can also present significant challenges to
property development including sinkhole formation and long-term reliability of groundwater
supplies due to multiple developments using and drawing down a single ground water
source.
Soils can also play a role in the development potential of property. The United States
Department of Agriculture completed a detailed study of the County in 1994. There are 12
general soil classifications for the County as detailed in Map 4.2 – Soils. The 1994 Botetourt
Soil Survey provides general information for these classifications as well as detailed
information on more specific types of soils.
[Insert Figure 4.2. – Soils]

Land Cover
Botetourt County features a variety of land cover in its borders, from high intensity
development to open water. An important factor in planning for the future of Botetourt is
understanding the types of land cover in the County and to identify which land cover types
are growing and which are declining.
Table 4.2 gives the overall area gained and lost by land cover category as reported by the
Multi-Resolution Land Characteristics Consortium (MRLC) The MRLC is a group of federal
agencies who report land coverage across the United States. The data that the MRLC reports
can be used to better understand how land use management efforts are working and to aid
future planning efforts. It is also important to note that the MRLC is produced at a regional
level and may not be fully accurate at the local level.
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Since 2001, some of the most-changing land cover categories include High-Intensity
Development, Medium-Intensity Development, and Cultivated Crops. While the percent of
their total changed greatly (38.54% for High-Intensity Development, for example), many of
these have grown very little in terms of total area. To put this in perspective, Botetourt has
546 square miles of land in total. Of this total, only 0.29 square miles of land has changed to
High-Intensity Development. The largest total area change has been the loss of land cover
related to Pasture/Hay at 5.16 square miles. Figure 4.3 displays the land cover types in the
County.
While the overall net change of these land categories in terms of total square miles may be
relatively small, it is important to track changes in the County to support plans addressing
and mitigating the loss of agricultural and forestall lands in the future. As land cover changes
to developed land, it is impossible to return that land to its original state. There are several
strategies available to help preserve natural and agricultural space. The 2010 Comprehensive
Plan outlined several such strategies, including:
•
•
•
•
•
•

Purchase of Development Rights
Agricultural/Forestal Districts
Conservation Reserve Program
Riparian Easements
Conservation Reserve Enhancement Program, and
Voluntary Conservation Easements.

While these strategies are still effective means of preserving land from development
pressures and should be continued, it is necessary for County staff to work with state and
federal partners and citizens to step up implementation of the existing strategies, while also
searching for additional programs and policies to ensure the preservation of natural areas.
Land Cover
Categories
Developed, High
Intensity
Developed, Medium
Intensity
Developed, Low
Intensity
Developed, Open
Space
Cultivated Crops
Pasture/Hay
Grassland
Deciduous Forest
Evergreen Forest
Mixed Forest
Scrub/Shrub
Woody Wetland
Emergent
Herbaceous Wetland

Area in
2001

Area Lost

Area
Gained

Area in
2019

Net
Change

Percent
Change

0.75

0.00

0.29

1.04

0.29

38.54%

2.94

-0.02

0.95

3.88

0.94

31.85%

12.86

-0.26

0.90

13.50

0.64

4.99%

19.67

-0.60

1.58

20.64

0.97

4.93%

3.93
89.35
5.43
259.98
26.20
115.60
4.29
0.37

-0.02
-5.69
-4.73
-9.20
-1.66
-1.79
-4.18
-0.02

1.10
0.53
4.31
5.68
3.28
4.67
4.70
0.06

5.02
84.19
5.01
256.47
27.81
118.49
4.81
0.41

1.09
-5.16
-0.42
-3.51
1.61
2.88
0.52
0.04

27.59%
-5.77%
-7.71%
-1.35%
6.15%
2.49%
12.14%
10.81%

0.09

-0.05

0.11

0.15

0.06

72.55%
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Categories
Barren Land
Open Water
Perennial Snow/Ice
Source: 2001-2019 MRLC

Area in
2001
0.53
4.00
0.00

February 2022
Area Lost
-0.14
-0.09
0.00

Area
Gained
0.21
0.07
0.00

Area in
2019
0.60
3.98
0.00

Net
Change
0.07
-0.02
0.00

Percent
Change
13.14%
-0.59%
0.00%

[Insert Figure 4.3 - Land Cover Map]

Water Resources
Surface waters and access to them is an asset for citizens. While Botetourt does not have an
overabundance of lakes or coastal areas like other communities in Virginia, the county does
have several streams and rivers that flow through it. These rivers and streams are important
for recreational purposes, including kayaking, canoeing, swimming, and fishing. Preserving
the health of these resources and expanding access to them is important for placemaking in
Botetourt.

Rivers and Streams
The southernmost portion of Botetourt County lies in the
Roanoke River Basin. The majority of the County is in the
James River Basin, serving as the major source of drinking
water for the County. The James River, the longest river in
Virginia, begins near the Botetourt-Alleghany County line
where the Jackson and Cowpasture Rivers merge. Several
important tributaries feed the James, including Craig Creek,
Catawba Creek, and Looney Creek. Other major creeks also
contribute to the County’s surface water resources. These
include creeks within the James River Basin (Back Creek, Mill
Creek, and Little Patterson Creek) and Tinker Creek, which
lies within and contributes to the Roanoke River Basin.
The County’s surface water resources are significant
environmental features, enhancing and contributing to the
County’s quality of life and recreational opportunities.
Developing access points to enjoy the surface waters for
recreational purposes is a big driver of quality of place and
economic development efforts. Increased access not only
contributes to the health and wellness of Botetourt citizens,
it also improves our relationship with nature and encourages
the appreciation and preservation of our local assets.

Floodplains
Many properties near surface waters can be subject to
periodic flooding. Due to this periodic flooding, the County
participates in the National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP).
This program is managed by the Federal Emergency
Management Administration (FEMA) and designates the
Chapter 4 – Natural Environment

WHAT IS QUALITY
OF PLACE?
Quality of place is a big
factor in deciding where
to settle down. It is the
culmination of several
community features that
distinguish a locality
from others.
Environmental
resources, access to
quality jobs and
housing, recreational
opportunity, community
gatherings, and much
more are all pieces of
the quality of place
puzzle. Community
engagement efforts
reinforced that
Botetourt’s natural
environment is a key
feature of the overall
quality of place.
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approximate location of 100-year floodplains in the County. The County restricts building in
these flood zones and in exchange, County residents within flood-prone areas are eligible for
subsidized federal flood insurance.

Stormwater
Stormwater occurs after a rain or snow event and encompasses any water that does not
infiltrate the soil. As the runoff undergoes its natural flow it can pick up pollutants that enter
the natural waterways, introducing pollutants into our water system. Botetourt County works
to manage stormwater through a variety of programs. These programs include public
engagement through education, outreach, and involvement, illicit discharge detection and
elimination, construction site control, post-construction management and development, and
pollution prevention. Botetourt has adopted a Stormwater Management Ordinance in
accordance with state and federal best management practices and regulates stormwater
through the Division of Development Services.
Stormwater runoff continues to increase as development in Botetourt creates more
impervious surfaces. Controlling this runoff, and ensuring that existing can handle the current
stormwater runoff load and future needs, is an important goal. Low Impact Development (LID)
according to the US Environmental Protection Agency, “is a system that seeks to mimic
natural processes that result in the infiltration, evapotranspiration, or use of stormwater to
protect water quality and associated aquatic habitat.” Botetourt should consider codifying or
adopting some LID standards to ensure development continues to be an asset to the
community, rather than harming the natural environment.

Protected Lands & Species
Botetourt is home to two federally protected forests, the George Washington and Jefferson
National Forests. These protected lands cover over 80,000 acres in the County and comprise
over twenty-two percent of the entire land area of Botetourt. The forests were
administratively combined in 1995 by the Forest Service and their combined area is
approximately 1.8 million acres. According to the Forest Service, the forests are home to:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

40 species of trees,
2,000 species of shrubs and herbaceous plants,
78 species of amphibians and reptiles,
200 species of birds,
60 species of mammals,
2,340 miles of perennial streams,
100 species of freshwater fishes and mussels; and,
53 federally listed Threatened or Endangered animal and plant species. (About the
Forest. U.S. Forest Service)

In 2019 the Forest Service acquired nearly 5,000 acres of forestland in the County using $5
million from the Land and Water Conservation Fund. According to the office of U.S. Senator
Mark Warner, “The addition of this land to the Forest Service will help preserve a local historic
asset, enhance Virginians’ access to recreation, and protect the water quality of Craig Creek,
a tributary to the James River and the Chesapeake Bay.” The addition of this land to the Forest
Service system ensures its future maintenance and protection.
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The George Washington and Jefferson National Forests also contain an abundance of
recreation opportunities that will be discussed in more detail in Chapter 9 – Community
Services and Facilities.
The U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service lists 17 species on Botetourt’s species report. Of these 17
species, seven have an approved recovery plan to protect and rehabilitate them, as identified
in Table 4.2. Protection of these species involves identification of their populations in
Botetourt and active, deliberate programs to ensure their survival.
Common Name
Appalachian
Bewick’s Wren
Yellow Lance
Atlantic Pigtoe
James
spinymussel
Orangefin
Madtom
Northern LongEared Myotis

Scientific Name

Federal
Legal
Status

Birds
Thryomanes
SOC
bewickii altus
Bivalvia (Mussels)
Elliptio
LT
lanceolata
Fusconaia
PT
masoni
Parvaspina
LE
collina
Fish
Noturus gilberti
Mammals
Myotis
septentrionalis
Vascular Plants
Clematis
addisonii
Echinacea
laevigata

Addison’s
Leatherflower
Smooth
coneflower
Sword-leaf
Phlox buckleyi
Phlox
Source: U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service

State
Legal
Status
LE
LT
LT
LE

SOC

LT

LT

LT

SOC

PE

LE

LT

SOC

PT

SOC: Species of Concern – Species which merit special
concern
PT: Proposed Threatened – Any species likely to become
endangered within the foreseeable future throughout its
range and which has a draft rule to list as threatened.
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birdzilla.com)

Yellow Lance (Source: U.S. Fish and
Wildlife Service)

Northern Long-Eared Mytosis
(Source: Bat Conservation
International)
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PE: Proposed Endangered – Any species in danger of
extinction throughout its range and which has a draft rule to
list as endangered.
LT: Listed Threatened – Any species that is likely to become
endangered within the foreseeable future throughout its
range.
LE: Listed Endangered – Any species which is endanger of
extinction throughout its range.
Smooth Coneflower (Source: U.S.
Fish and Wildlife Service)
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Community Engagement

Botetourt’s beautiful natural environment was one of the most frequently cited items of pride
in the community engagement phase. Survey respondents and community meeting
attendees alike expressed a strong desire to protect the natural environment and
encouraged improved access to assets in the community. While the community feels
strongly about protecting the natural environment, there is limited knowledge about
programs and initiatives that would assist in doing so. Objectives and strategies are needed
to ensure the continued health of the natural environment and to improve harmonical access
to our natural assets.

Partners & Programs
Government Organizations
Several government entities are committed to preserving the natural environment and many
are mandated by law to enforce environmental policies. While the following entities are
involved in managing the environment in some capacity, there are other entities that also
work towards the same effort.
Roanoke Valley-Alleghany Regional Commission (RVARC)
The RVARC is a regional body focused on planning efforts that serve Botetourt and the
surrounding area. RVARC works on a variety of sustainability and environmental programs,
including coordination of stormwater management, transportation planning, vanpooling and
carpooling efforts, air quality, and others.
Mountain Castles Soil & Water Conservation District (MCSWCD)
Mountain Castles Soil & Water Conservation District (MCSWCD) is one of 47 water and soil
districts in the state. MCSWCD was formed in 1987 and named after the county seats of
Botetourt and Craig Counties and the mountains in the area. MCSWCD is governed by a
volunteer board and is a political subdivision of the state. Their work focuses on nonpoint
source pollution issues and the organization offers conservation, education, and outreach
programs. One such program is a cost-share for residential septic improvements in the Tinker
Creek and Glade Creek watersheds. In 2021, the MCSWCD began offering a program to
property owners in the Upper James River watershed to restore or create forest buffers,
improving the quality of local waterways.
Federal & State Government
The federal government is heavily involved in programs and projects that impact the natural
environment. The U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) is the agency primarily
responsible for setting environmental management programs at the federal level. The EPA
and other organizations serve to protect the environment through enforcement of
environmental standards, programs to partner with state and local governments to support
environmental protection at those levels, and occasionally direct grants of funding to other
entities.
At the state level, the Department of Environmental Quality (DEQ) applies and enforces
regulations related to air and water quality, water supply, renewable energy and land
protection. DEQ offers programs that encourage pollution privilege, like the Virginia
Chapter 4 – Natural Environment
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Environmental Excellence Program (VEEP), which provides assistance to local governments
that endeavor to improve their relationship with the environment. The department also lists
several programs available to private citizens and organizations to reduce their
environmental footprint.

Advocacy Groups and Other Organizations
Advocacy groups are critical to the improvement and protection of the natural environment.
These organizations should be supported in their endeavors. The Roanoke region has
numerous advocacy groups focused on this goal, including, but not limited to:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Appalachian Trail Conservancy
Blue Ridge Parkway Foundation and FRIENDS of the Blueridge Parkway, Inc.
Botetourt Beekeeper’s Association Club
Botetourt Longbeards, National Wild Turkey Federation
Pathfinders for Greenways
Roanoke Appalachian Trail Club
Roanoke Valley Bird Club
Sierra Club: Roanoke Chapter
The Blue Ridge Land Conservancy
Trout Unlimited: Roanoke Chapter
Virginia Outdoors Foundation

Virginia Cooperative Extension
The Virginia Cooperative Extension program is offered through Virginia Tech and Virginia
State University and is dedicated to disseminating information related to agricultural
practices, environmental stewardship, economic growth, and social well-being. Most
localities in Virginia have a local extension office. Botetourt’s office is located in Fincastle and
offers several programs to residents, including youth camps and clubs. The 4-H youth
program is managed by the local VCE office.

Needs Assessment

Cultivating appreciation for the natural environment and developing programs and policies
to improve our relationship with it are paramount. There is a growing need for more facilities
in Botetourt, including walking and hiking trails, bicycle infrastructure, and water access
points. As Botetourt continues to grow and develop, preserving the existing natural assets in
the County will be ever more important. Utilizing the James River and the Blue Ridge and
Appalachian Mountains for recreation must be balanced with effective and prudent
stewardship of those same assets. Conserving prime agricultural land and limiting
development to suburban and more urbanized locations in the County should be a focus for
future land development as well.
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Objectives and Strategies
Goal: Secure and preserve a natural environment supportive of a high quality of life for
all Botetourt citizens, promoting opportunities for outdoor recreation and creating
harmony with the built environment.
Objective 1: Sustain a high-quality natural environment including clean waterways,
healthy ecosystems, and inhabitable land.
Cost to
Strategies
Responsibility
Timeframe
Pursue
Encourage property owners to implement best
practices that minimize damage to the natural
County,
Immediate,
environment, including, but not limited to,
$
Citizens
On-Going
planting of native plants, installation of rain
gardens, and stream buffering and restoration.
Consider adoption of Low Impact Development
(LID) standards to mitigate stormwater runoff in
County
$-$$
Short-Term
new development.
Work to become a leader in environmental
stewardship by seeking statewide recognition
County
$$
Mid-Term
through DEQ’s Virginia Environmental
Excellence Program.
County,
Partner with relevant organizations to minimize
County
$-$$$
On-Going
damage to protected animal and plant species.
Partners
Objective 2: Develop new access points and improve existing access points to utilize
natural assets for recreation.
Cost to
Strategies
Responsibility
Timeframe
Pursue
Collaborate with public and private partners to
County,
identify new access points for trails and the
County
$
Short-Term
James River.
Partners
Collaborate with public and private partners to
County,
identify needed improvements to existing
County
$
Short-Term
access points for trails and the James River.
Partners
Identify funding sources to develop new access
County
$-$$$
Mid-Term
points and to improve existing points.
Consider establishing a citizen trails advocacy
County,
group to direct the formation of recreational
$
Short-Term
Citizens
trails.
Continue planning for a greenway network that
County,
connects to the regional greenway system and
Regional
Ongoing,
$$-$$$
supports the goals and vision of the regional
Partners,
Long-Term
greenway plan.
Citizens
Objective 3: Improve education and outreach efforts to promote existing
environmental programs.
Develop and disseminate educational materials
to private citizens and organizations detailing
available grant, tax incentive, and other
County
$
Short-Term
assistance programs to improve their
environmental footprint.
Chapter 4 – Natural Environment
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Goal: Secure and preserve a natural environment supportive of a high quality of life for
all Botetourt citizens, promoting opportunities for outdoor recreation and creating
harmony with the built environment.
Partner with state and federal organizations,
County,
advocacy groups, and businesses to sponsor a
County
$$-$$$
Mid-Term
campaign encouraging the adoption of
Partners
environmental programs by homeowners.
Engage with local schools to develop
County,
environmental programs for children and
$-$$
Mid-Term
School Board
students.
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Chapter 5 – Local Economy
Goal

Foster a thriving and diverse economy that creates opportunities for well-paying
employment for all citizens across the County.

Introduction

The Botetourt economy is characterized by low unemployment, the highest median income
in the region, and a fast-growing and diverse employment base. Botetourt is well-placed
along the major throughfares of Interstate 81, US Route 220, and US Route 11, serving as an
important crossroads for travel in the state.
Historically, the economy has been rooted in agriculture, featuring large and small farms
alike. According to the most recent US Department of Agriculture Census for the county
(2017), there are 88,842 acres utilized for farming, or approximately one-fourth of the county’s
total size, with 551 farms. Most (71%) of Botetourt County farm sales activity involves livestock
and poultry, primarily beef cattle. During 2017, Botetourt County’s farms produced a market
value of $14,055,000, yielding a net income of $23 per farm, essentially a break-even
proposition for the majority of Botetourt County’s farmers. This financial reality reveals a
greater significance that the county’s farmers maintain their operations for reasons greater
than financial income.
While agriculture is still an important feature of the economy today, other sectors have grown
in total employment and revenue. The leading employment sectors include manufacturing
accounting for 14.3 percent of private nonfarm employment in 2020, followed by wholesale
trade (12.5 percent) and administrative (9.3 percent). Government employment accounted for
10.6 percent of employment in the county in 2020. Large manufacturing companies, such as
Eldor Corporation, Dynax, and Altec Industries make up significant portions of the local
economy and manufacturing job base. While these large primary employers and businesses
attract dollars into the community for taxable investments and payrolls, and are hence
economic drivers in the County, the community would be incomplete without small and midsize businesses, which provide necessary goods and services to residents and are essential
in making Botetourt a great place to live. In Botetourt County, there are approximately 800
small businesses employing ten or fewer workers.
It is difficult to predict what the future will have in store for Botetourt’s economy, but it is
important to continue planning ahead. The COVID-19 pandemic has forced Botetourt officials
to rethink the economy, as many workers transitioned to working from home, families have
dealt with loss and economic hardship, and the community has coped with a shifting
economic landscape. Botetourt County will endeavor to seize new opportunities made
available to local governments through pandemic relief efforts and continue to plan for an
economy that serves the needs of the community.
This chapter will identify economic development programs, partnerships, and initiatives in the
County, highlight some opportunities and challenges facing Botetourt, and define a needs
assessment. Additionally, some strategies and objectives will be recommended to meet the
Local Economy goal.
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Planning Context

The local economy is defined by employers, workers, and economic development efforts.
The following sections will provide a snapshot of the major employers in the county, some
information about the workers in Botetourt, and detail economic development efforts
conducted by the County and its partners. A fuller discussion of Botetourt’s economic profile
can be found in Appendix A – Community Profile.

Economic Background
Employment in Botetourt features a diverse set of large employers. While the largest
employment sector is manufacturing, other large employment sectors include wholesale
trade, government, and health care and social assistance. Some of the largest nongovernmental employers include:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Altec Industries, Inc.,
Dynax American Corporation,
Action Personnel.
Metalsa Roanoke, Inc.,
Lawrence Transportation Services,
Virginia Baptist Homes,
Eldor Automotive Powertrain USA, LLC, and
Virginia Truck Center, Inc.1

Large employers who employ 100-249 employees, like the ones listed above, employ the
most Botetourt citizens. Many of these large employers are sited within industrial or business
parks. Space is limited in these parks, and additional sites will need to be identified to allow
for more industrial growth. Map 5.1 below indicates the current business and industrial
development parks and potential sites for new parks.
[Insert Map 5.1 – Economic Development Sites]
The balance of small, medium, and large employers forms the backbone of the local
economy. It takes this balance to produce a community enticing for residents to live in, stay
in, and to conduct business in. A balanced and diverse economy is also more resilient in
economic downturns and recessions. Botetourt is fortunate to not rely on a single large
employer, providing a measure of resiliency during rockier economic conditions. Citizens
continue to find employment in and around the county, producing economic turnout that
benefits Botetourt and the entire region.
The Economic Development Landscape
Botetourt’s population is more highly educated than most other localities in the region, with
28.3 percent of the population possessing a bachelor’s degree or higher. A highly educated
workforce is necessary to attract skilled manufacturing and high-tech companies to the
County. The Economic Policy Institute has found a clear link between educational attainment

1

Virginia Economic Commission, 2021
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and strong economic success in a locality.2 These
firms also typically offer higher paying positions and
support a higher quality of life for Botetourt citizens.
While high-tech and skilled manufacturing firms are
important to seek, those positions are only a small
portion of the entire economic field. Botetourt County
must
partner
with
economic
development
organizations to expand job opportunities to those
with higher degrees of education and those who have
not had the opportunity to attain the same level of
education. The economy works best when it provides
options for highly educated and skilled trade
employees alike. To this end, Botetourt County must
engage with outside organizations to conduct
workforce training, utilizing guidance from the State to
determine the best-suited industries to the region.
A substantial portion of Botetourt’s citizens find
employment outside the county, as many people tend
to travel to Roanoke City and Roanoke County to work.
That portion has declined slightly since 2012, but still
represents more than half of the Botetourt labor force.
As industry grows in the county, more residents are
able to find employment in Botetourt, rather than
outside it. Additionally, the COVID-19 pandemic has
shifted the nature of work as many employees
transitioned to working from home for their health and
safety.
The long-lasting impacts of this shift are yet to be
seen, but early observations indicate that many
workers have decided to move to more rural settings.
This migration may bring new individuals and families
to the County, spurring a growth in the housing market
and businesses in the area. Developing housing that
suits these needs and continuing to work on the roll
out of broadband across the County are critical
economic development strategies to capitalize on
these changes brought on by the pandemic.
Geographically, job growth and development has not
been evenly distributed across the county.
Development to date has focused mainly on the
southern portions of the county, save for a few large

2

February 2022

BEAR: BUSINESS EXPANSION,
ATTRACTION, AND
RETENTION
Economic development efforts in
Botetourt are focused on business
expansion,
attraction,
and
retention, or “BEAR” for short.
BEAR is a useful tool to guide
economic
development
and
provides a framework for how to
do so.
Business expansion occurs when
an existing company has grown
past a site or building’s
usefulness and is seeking to grow
into a larger facility. This involves
working with the business to
identify
their
needs
and
connecting them to resources
when available.

Business attraction is the hard
work that goes into bringing new
ventures into Botetourt. It
involves marketing the County’s
assets,
identifying
sites
appropriate for firms, and
developing relationships with the
business community.
Business retention is focused on
keeping the existing businesses
in Botetourt here. What do they
need to continue operation? What
resources or changes can
Botetourt offer to ensure their
continued operation?

“A Well-Educated Workforce is Key to State Prosperity” by Noah Berger and Peter Fisher, 2013.
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employers such as Gala Industries and Carris Plastics. Targeting growth to the south serves a
few purposes. Directing growth to a specific area allows emergency and community services
to provide for a great number of people. Additionally, many businesses and manufacturing
firms require access to public water and sewer, something that is largely unavailable in other
locations in the county. Extension of water and sewer lines is costly and serves as a growth
management strategy, discussed further in the Land Use chapter.
Along the intersections of Interstate 81, Route 220 Alternate, and U.S. Route 11, lies the
Gateway Crossing Urban Development Area (UDA). While the specifics of this designation will
be discussed more robustly in the Land Use chapter, discussing this area in the Local
Economy chapter is important. Redevelopment of this area is a critical economic goal, due to
its advantageous location on the crossing of three major thoroughfares in the region. The
County has produced two documents, the Exit 150 Market Study and Conceptual Master Plan,
and the Gateway Crossing Area Plan. These documents provide a guiding vision for the
Gateway Crossing Area and the strategies found in these plans are being implemented by
the county. The County must continue the implementation of the strategies in these
documents and work to engage partners, landowners, and citizens to develop an attractive
and productive entrance into Botetourt.
New startups are another important piece of the economic puzzle. Entrepreneurship can
indicate confidence in the economic landscape and should be encouraged as a means of
personal growth. Successful new startups can energize flagging communities, bolster
reinvestment in the area, and disrupt cycles of poverty for impoverished and disadvantaged
groups. It is not easy, however. Entrepreneurs assume a great deal of risk and invest
significant hours and resources into their businesses. There are several organizations and
programs that recognize the importance of entrepreneurs and understand the risk
entrepreneurs take on. Botetourt County should engage with these programs, lending
support when possible.
The tourism industry is an integral piece of the County’s economy. Botetourt County has
numerous historic, cultural, and natural assets that make it a tourist destination for many.
Encouraging tourism to the County, and fostering the businesses and organizations that
support that industry, is an important economic growth goal. Developing the historic, cultural,
and natural assets is necessary to achieve that goal. Botetourt should continue to partner with
Visit Virginia’s Blue Ridge to develop tourism in the County.
Agricultural and agritourism are two connected and influential sectors of the economy in
Botetourt. Botetourt prides itself on its long-standing agricultural traditions, including a great
tradition of innovation in new agricultural technologies and practices. More recently,
agritourism has gained ground in the County. Agritourism business, such as wineries, wedding
and event venues, and seasonal farm visitation, are attractive ventures for farmers. These
supplement the more traditional farming output of products and can provide additional
income to farmers. The agritourism industry is attractive, but conflicts with traditional
agriculture. As more farmland is converted to event space, agricultural land is tarnished and
is unlikely to return to traditional farming purposes. Botetourt must strive to work with the
agricultural community to ensure a balance of agritourism and traditional agriculture
continues into the future.
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Partnerships & Initiatives

There are numerous partners and initiatives supporting economic development in the county.
Some of these organizations have a regional focus, while others are specific to Botetourt
County. There is a variety of government and non-government organizations involved in
economic development throughout the County and region as well.
Botetourt County is engaged in economic development through the Office of Economic
Development. This office works with partner organizations to connect businesses with
resources, assists with siting and attraction of new businesses, and serves as a hub for
development. While effective, the office is lean and relies on outside organizations in service
provision.
The Roanoke Regional Partnership is a regional economic development organization that
connects businesses with sites in the Roanoke region to relocate and expand. This regional
body was founded in 1983 and is funded jointly by the eight organizations in the region. The
Roanoke Outside organization was created by the Partnership and has created an outdoor
‘brand’ for the region, harnessing the beauty and natural resources of the area for business
attraction.
The Roanoke Valley-Alleghany Regional Commission prepares an annual Comprehensive
Economic Development Strategy (CEDS) for the United States Department of Commerce.
This annual economic development plan began in 2007 and promotes the region as open
and eager for economic development. The CEDS lists several economic development
projects in Botetourt County that can be used as a project tracking tool and should be
updated as these projects progress.
Small business and entrepreneurial development is supported by programs through several
organizations. The Advancement Foundation offers mentoring and sponsorships to
competitors in the annual “The Gauntlet” competition. The local Chamber of Commerce
fosters business-to-business connections to promote collaboration and resource sharing as
well. The state offers support to businesses through Go Virginia and the Department of
Housing and Community Development. Support takes the form of grants and loan funds, such
as the Community Development Block Grant, Rural Business Development Grant, to assist
business development.

Community Engagement

Not surprisingly, the local economy is often a main interest for residents. Earning a living for
a household and ensuring that they are successful and healthy is of singular importance for
many. Input gathered from the community during the engagement process reflected this, as
several respondents indicated that job creation was a need in Botetourt. Balancing this
concern is the desire for careful economic growth that does not exacerbate perceived issues
of overcrowding and congestion around the southern portions of the county.
Survey respondents indicated that Botetourt is missing some specific development types.
Entertainment options, restaurants (not drive-throughs), and small non-chain retail were all
cited as amenities the County is lacking. Encouraging these developments may pay dividends
in retaining tax dollars in the County as well as creating quality of place in Botetourt.

Chapter 5 – Local Economy

6|Page

Envision Botetourt 2040
Comprehensive Plan Update

February 2022

Over 60 percent of survey respondents indicated that commercial development efforts
should focus on improving and updating existing commercial developments. Seemingly,
residents would prefer redeveloping vacant commercial property rather than building new
sites. While this is an understandable desire, it provides its own set of challenges, including
tracking down current owners, identifying new owners or tenants, and the cost of retrofitting
older buildings to fit modern codes and needs.

Needs Assessment
•
•
•
•
•

Identification and creation of new industrial and business development parks.
Promotion of entrepreneurship and fostering of new businesses to reduce risk.
Collaboration and communication across economic development agencies.
Expanded service and experience-oriented businesses that reach throughout the
county, offering childcare services as well as food and entertainment.
Additional resources for the County Economic Development Office.
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Objectives and Strategies
Goal: Foster a thriving and diverse economy that creates opportunities for
employment for all citizens across the County.
Objective 1: Continue to attract high performing business that diversify
economy and provide career opportunities to Botetourt residents.
Cost to
Strategies
Responsibility
Pursue
Implement the findings and goals of the
County,
Regional Comprehensive Economic
Regional
$$-$$$
Development Strategy.
Partners
Conduct a workforce development study to
County
$$
determine needs in the County.
Develop workforce housing that meets the
County
$$$
needs of a diverse socioeconomic population.
Review opportunities to expand the County’s
economic development efforts, including new
County
$$-$$$
and expanded resources for the Office of
Economic Development.
Identify gaps and limitations that may prevent or
preclude individuals from participating in the
County
$-$$$
workforce.
Identify potential new or expanded business
County
$-$$
and industrial park sites in the County.
Continue work to implement the objectives and
strategies in the Gateway Crossing Area Plan.

County

$-$$

well-paying
Botetourt’s
Timeframe
On-Going,
Mid-Term
Short-Term
Long-Term
Mid-Term
Mid-Term,
Long-Term
Mid-Term
ShortTerm, OnGoing

Work to identify opportunities and methods to
County,
encourage rehabilitation of existing structures
$-$$
On-Going
Entrepreneurs
for commercial use, when possible.
Objective 2: Engage with partner organizations to provide grants and loans that
encourage entrepreneurship and business expansion.
Cost to
Strategies
Responsibility
Timeframe
Pursue
Develop a grant and loan tracking software to
County
$
Short-Term
plan for available funding.
County,
Encourage entrepreneurship in high-need
Businesses,
$$
Mid-Term
services such as childcare facilities.
Regional
Partners
Be active partners in existing regional and
County,
county-specific economic planning and
Regional
$-$$
On-Going
development.
Partners
Consider opportunities to offer microloans,
County, State
seed money for entrepreneurs, and other
$$-$$$
Mid-Term
Partners
targeted economic development programs.
Objective 3: Work to develop a strong tourism industry in the County.
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Goal: Foster a thriving and diverse economy that creates opportunities for
employment for all citizens across the County.
Continue to work with Visit Virginia’s Blue
County, Visit
Ridge, Botetourt County Parks and Recreation
VA’s Blue
$-$$
and other relevant organizations to develop
Ridge
the County’s tourism assets.
County, Visit
Partner with tourism-based businesses and
VA’s Blue
groups in the County to promote offerings and
$-$$
Ridge,
activities in peak visitation times.
Businesses
County, Visit
Work with agricultural landowners and
VA’s Blue
operators to achieve a balance of agritourism
$-$$$
Ridge, Farm
and traditional agricultural output.
Operators
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